
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, September 1st, 2009.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Steven Kessler, Chairman presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Loretta Taylor, Vice-Chairperson 



John Bernard, Board Member 




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member (absent)



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  




John Milmore, CAC




Jeffrey Rothfeder, CAC 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA BY MAJORITY VOTE (NONE)


*



*



*




ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JULY 7, 2009
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can I please have a motion to adopt the minutes from our meeting of July 7th, so moved, seconded, on the question.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I have corrections I’m submitting.

All in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*




PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 17-08    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Springvale Apartments company for Site Development Plan Approval for the construction of a parking area with 22 spots and associated drainage improvements located between buildings 14 & 16 at the Springvale Apartment Complex located on the northwest side of Spring Place, approximately 300 feet northwest of Springvale Road as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Springvale Apartments” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated June 24, 2009 and on a 1 page planting plan prepared by David Ferris Miller dated June 24, 2009.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing Springvale Apartments.  With me this evening: Patrick Bell from Tim Miller’s office, Robert Cogan from Springvale Apartments as well as Tina Zerello.  Since the last meeting we attempted to respond to the comments that we got from the Board as well as some of the neighbors by going back out and exploring whether there were alternatives to the proposed design of this parking area.  I’m pleased to say not only was that design modified but we actually had a number of the Board members out for a follow-up site inspection.  I’m aware that staff conducted its own further follow-up inspection to review whether there were other alternatives.  Pat’s going to walk you through the revised design and what our new preferred plan is.  It is still 22 spaces.  We have moved the parking area further from building 14 but we’re also going to discuss an analysis that Pat in Tim Cronin’s office did in response to suggestions of some of the Board members who were out at the site inspection.  We did look at an alternative design pushing the parking area further toward building 16.  We want to explain why we think it is not an appropriate plan, why it’s more impactful in a number of different ways and why Springvale is most anxious to proceed with the revised plan that we’re going to describe.  Tina is here after we had a follow-up meeting with staff to explain how parking spaces are allocated, how the demand is so strong and why we’re here offering to voluntarily install new parking at Springvale.  Springvale tenants do not pay for this parking.  This is something that my client is willing to do to improve an existing condition.  Some of the members questioned at the work session, this is not going to alleviate a major parking concern.  It’s going to begin to whittle down an existing situation as a result to the fact that a lot more people drive and have vehicles at Springvale than when the facility was originally constructed.  With that as background I’m going to turn it over to Pat to do a brief explanation of the revised design and the analysis and then Tina I know wants to make some comments tonight and I do believe that there are a number of members of the public here this evening.
Mr. Patrick Bell presented himself to the Board and stated from Cronin Engineering.  As Mr. Steinmetz noted I was going to speak on the design changes from the last time that we were here for the public hearing.  The last plan showed 22 spaces along with two handicap spaces and handicap unloading zone.  In this area were the two handicap spaces.  After our meeting with staff we asked them the requirement of handicap spaces.  They said that a parking lot less than 25 spots doesn’t require handicap spaces, so what we did was we ended up eliminating the handicap space that was located right here what is now the existing access way to building 14.  We also shifted a spot from that was going to be the handicap unloading zone and made that into a spot.  In doing so we shifted the parking which was proposed on our last plan and from 15.4 feet from building 14 to 19.3 feet away from building 14.  With that said, we still are proposing 22 spots as our applicants wished to have 22 spots to try and maximize the area to provide as much parking to the surrounding tenants as they can.  With that said, it came up at the site walk on Sunday in regards to possibly redesigning this area to eliminate these four spots right here and possibly reconfiguring the parking area so that ran parallel with building 14 and shifted the four spots that were eliminated here down towards building 16 and this existing walkway.  We did a preliminary layout of that.  There’s a few engineering issues that followed.  First off, when we shifted it to get this design to be parallel to building 14 and shifted the spots down towards building 16, the parking spots ran over the existing sewer in that area and the existing concrete walkway that accesses to the back of building 16.  For that plan you would have to reconfigure the concrete pathway to building 16.  The sewer wouldn’t have the minimum four-foot cover that’s required by the County Code over the sewer pipe, then if you have to redesign the sewer to lower it to allow that to meet Code on that.  It’s also questions on the grading in this area that we shifted the parking lot down towards building 16 to keep the pitch of 5% down here, we’d end up having to construct a three-foot retaining wall next to building 16 and that retaining wall would be approximately 1 ½ foot from the edge of building 16.  So, you’d be shifting the problem of being too close to building 14 towards building 16.  I know there’s another question that was brought up previously as far as possibly putting parking in front of building 22.  We also looked at doing head-on parking in this area.  As you can note, we also added to the plan, this area right here it’s not marked ‘parking’ but it’s parking that’s utilized by visitors to Springvale and some of the tenants of Springvale for parallel parking.  When we were out there we saw probably eight cars parked in that area.  By Town Code that would be six spots so that’s what we showed on here a 20-foot space is eight-foot wide and 20 feet long.  We looked at possibly putting head-on parking in this area.  You would be able to get 11 spaces head-on spots in here, however you’d be required to remove approximately 600 cubic feet of rock and also construct an eight-foot retaining wall in this area right here.  The cost of doing that would really be extensive and above and beyond what the applicant had budgeted to do to provide parking.  There is also a question as possibly putting angled parking in here.  Angled parking is even less than the head-on parking in that area.  We explored the different areas to try to maximize what we could as to try and get parking in there and it keeps coming back to this area right here with the 22 spaces really maximizes what we can do with that area and the surrounding area.
Mr. Ivan Kline asked what about, I’d raised at the work session the other night, you see where there’s the two parallel spots sort of in front of building 23, actually noticed this on my way out from the site inspection on Sunday, they don’t seem to be slopes there from the contour map or from eyeballing it why couldn’t you turn – obviously it’s not going to gain you more than two spaces.  It’s not a replacement for the 22 but just if the 22 became 20 because we reduced the spaces closer to the buildings or eliminated the ones closest to the buildings, couldn’t you gain two just by turning just the ones above it are turned.

Mr. Patrick Bell responded the contour map stops here but there’s another contour right there that if you go out in the field there’s more of a slope in that area than what’s indicated on this plan.  As you can see some of the contours break off and this is the edge of the contours in this area.  Even to construct this you’d still be – you’d still have to put some sort of retaining wall in this area to hold back the existing slope.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Kline we certainly would have no objection along the lines of what you were saying.  Was being said at the end of the work session should the Board elect to proceed with the application having a condition in it that would allow staff to take one final look and see if there is another location as was being mentioned at the work session.  Suffice it to say we do believe that this is the best of the alternatives.  It gets 22 spaces and most importantly it gets them rapidly if we can get this approved.  We’re anxious.  My client is anxious to secure approvals at the October meeting and begin construction with the goal of being able to provide these spaces prior to the winter time.  If I can allow Tina to speak very briefly on the issue of the allocation spaces and what we can do to try to assuage the concerns of the neighbors that might be located most closely.  There are some things that we can do and that we have in mind.
Ms. Tina Zerello presented herself to the Board and stated I’m the resident manager at Springvale Apartments.  One of the first things I was assigned when I went to work at Springvale was to come to some way of handling the parking situation.  It was one of the biggest jobs I undertook as an employee at the Springvale because the former resident manager said “it’s yours now.  You make it work.”  If you know Joan Sloat she really meant it and that was a challenge in itself because I encountered many tenants, many different types of personalities and they became angry, anxious that parking was not available.  It was not directly out in front of your building.  It didn’t afford you the opportunity like we do, I’m a homeowner, I pull in my driveway and I get out of my car and I go inside.  It’s not that case at Springvale.  So, when they talked about parking, I have been on this project for almost seven years of every year they ask “what do you want Tina?”  I want more parking because I want to be able to accommodate the elderly people that live at my complex.  I think that it’s unfair that some have the opportunity of parking directly out in front of their building and some do not.  What I can say is that when I think about parking I know it like it’s built in the top of my head because I’ve been doing it for so long.  What I’d like to do is pass out to you what I look at every day.  These are the maps of the actual complex.  When I talk about parking and I look just at the picnic glen my mind gets very narrow because it’s not just what we call the picnic glen.  It covers buildings 11, 14, 15, 12, 16, 17,18 some of 22, some of 21.  When people talk about Springvale Road and what does it take care of? For me to send someone in their 70s all the way up to Springvale Road because there are few empty spots.  Buildings 24, 25, 26, 21, 27, 28 some of 22, 23, 19 and 20 all take up Springvale Road then you take into consideration when you get to Spring Place you have no parking for visitors.  When people come in and they say to me “where can I park when I come to visit my mother?”  I have to say Spring Place and that means not only is Spring Place take up parking for tenants it also takes up those on a waiting list.  This parking that we talk about, 22 spots, which are so desperately needed, yes the people that when they originally did the complex people didn’t drive as much as they do now.  They didn’t have the cars.  They didn’t live as long and they’re not as mobile.  I have tenants now that are in their 80s and they’re still going and working part-time and still functioning and I love it because it means that, yes, we are a senior housing complex for those who are 55 and over but it means we’re not dead.  We still function.  We still drive.  We still get in our cars and we still have a right to decent parking for these people.  When I think of Mr. Plank, and Catherine, and John Circo, my heart goes out to them because they’re so used to that environment but it’s not like we’re going to put one big slab down there and say “too bad.”  We’ll offer them parking in that new parking area that will afford them the spaces directly in front so that they don’t have to be inconvenienced.  But, for me to say to three people as opposed to maybe 40 to 50 to 60 people “well, I’m sorry I can’t give you a parking spot.”  Not only is it a hardship for the people that are there now but future generations are not – cars are not going to go away.  They’re just going to increase.  People they come and the minute they find out they can’t have a parking spot, they have to get on a waiting list it is ridiculous.  My daughter went to go for a co-op, the deal was for three different options there were three different prices.  We’re not even charging.  What we’re saying to them is give us a parking spot close to our apartment.  Roselyn Miller, she’s in 16.  When she came here she was healthy.  She’s not healthy anymore and she walks all the way to the end of Spring Place from building 16.  If you look at that map that’s quite a journey for someone who’s not well.  When we talk about parking, I think parking is fair for everyone not just for the few who can walk outside their door, get in their car, and drive off.  It’s not that way with everybody and some of them are afraid to leave their apartments because if they move their car they can’t find a place to park.  That’s pretty sad to say to somebody “come and live at Springvale,” which I adore “but I don’t have a place for you to park your car.”  It breaks my heart because these are older people.  They trust my word when I say “eventually you’ll get a parking spot.”  Well, I can’t say that now because I don’t know where to park because more and more people are not giving up their cars.  I wish to just conclude whith I hope you consider what we’re asking.  I thank you for giving me a moment to speak.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked this is a public hearing is there anybody that wishes to comment on the application?

Ms. Nancy Schneider presented herself to the Board and stated I live at 16K Spring Place.  I’m here about eight months and the main thing I’m worried about is the snow, the ice.  Last winter was bad and there was one car hit a car.  They were all double parked.  They hit a car almost into mine.  You can’t park.  You can’t go out on the weekends.  I finally got a space about two blocks away.  I think it’s dangerous.  They double park in front of the fire hydrants.  The ambulances can’t get through.  They call the cops.  The cops can’t do anything.  There’s four cars parked in front of each other.  It’s dangerous and these people can’t run out of their house in case a fire engine comes and we can’t get to the fire hydrant.  There’s a lot of reasons but that’s the main cause.

Ms. Sister Madeline Cipriano presented herself to the Board and stated I live in 14.  I’ve been at Springvale Apartments for about four years, a little over four years.  I’m one of the younger, more mobile residents.  I can get around.  I can walk and fortunately I do have a sparking spot.  However, when I look at my neighbors there are many who have health care aides come in during the day.  I cannot tell you how many times I have come home and had to wait to get into my own parking space because an aide, or a nurse, had to go in and give medical or health assistance.  There is a wider and wider population growing that do need that kind of assistance.  The residents, the tenants have a right to that.  I’m not complaining about my parking spot being taken by one of the aides but I’m concerned that the other tenants get these services that they need.  In addition to that, again, I can get into my car at any point I want.  I can travel and I can walk and I usually visit my family where they live simply because it is so difficult for them to find parking whether it’s in the evening, on the weekends, whatever.  I would say that in the four years that I have been at Springvale I believe my family has been there six times.  Again, I can get out and go see them.  We have many elderly who cannot.  One of the most important quality of life issues for an elderly person is family contact and if there’s no way for a family to park close by and visit then they’re not getting the visits that they need for their well-being.
Ms. Maria Sclouros presented herself to the Board and stated I’m not one of those who has a parking space far away.  I’m the one who lives there for over a year and half and I don’t have a parking space yet.  I still work.  I’m not retired and I come a little late and I’m always concerned whether I’m going to find a parking space in front of building 22.  Most of the time I don’t find parking space.  I have to park in the parking space at Bethel and I always find notes on my car that I’m going to be towed away.  When I come home and I find a parking space, I’m lucky enough, I don’t leave the house.  I cannot leave even if I have things to do because I’m afraid when I’m going to find another parking space.  I always tell Tina “I need a parking space.”  Since I can still walk, as far as I’m concerned, I don’t walk far away but there’s no parking space even far away to park legally.  We need them.  Of course, I look at that beautiful park and I see two or three trees standing there and my heart breaks to see that go but at the same time we have to live there.  What are we going to do?  

Ms. Barbara Babbits presented herself to the Board and stated I live in building 11.  I’ve only been there five months and I don’t have a car right now or a parking space but I’m going to be getting a car and I would like to have a parking space to park it in.  There’s also no visitor parking that’s available.  If my family comes to visit they have to park by the Springvale Inn and then walk.  I think 22 spaces is definitely needed and it’s needed before the winter.

Ms. Jan Lynn presented herself to the Board and stated I live in building 15 at Springvale and I’ve been a resident there for 10 years and I’m very happy.  I’m very much in favor of 22 additional spaces because we need them.  In 15, the management in the spring, I happened to hear that they were going to put parking spaces in front of my building and I hated to see the grass grow and the tree grow and I thought I really don’t want it to go, but I must say they did a beautiful job.  Now, we have 11 spaces not too far from my front door, five and six cars lined up and it’s nicely landscaped and it gives people in my building that have a walking problem or something access to their car.  I happen to walk out to the street and I do have a parking space but I don’t have one in front of my door.  I see the need for all those people that I’m sure are here and I know personally.  I hope you’ll think about this as you make your decision.

Ms. Veronica McNally presented herself to the Board and stated I live in building 16 and I’m here on behalf of the handicapped.  I’ve been living in Springvale for two years.  I waited over seven months.  Sometimes I’m with a – can’t even think of the name of it.  Mr. Brown here, he has an attendant.  He can’t walk.  He has no parking space.  It’s very difficult.  We need 22 spots. It’s a hazard.  They’re parking in front of the fire hydrant.  They’re parking in the driveways.  If there’s an emergency, the police, the ambulances can’t get in.  It is vital.  There is no handicap parking in Springvale, which I don’t understand which should be but there are several people like myself that are not in a position to walk a mile or a half mile to Springvale.  We need to be parked on Spring Place near our house.  I would appreciate that you would consider this and that you would take some action on our behalf for the handicapped and disabled.

Mr. John Morse presented himself to the Board and stated I’ve been a Springvale resident for the last four years.  The Springvale complex went up in 1959.  A lot of time has gone by and since then, as a matter of fact, our youngest residents were about five years old at the time Springvale was built.  There are more cars in the road, of course, and we have a lot of elderly people.  Many of them with arthritis and to ask them to walk a thousand feet or more for a parking space it is asking quite a bit.  I would appreciate it if you would consider approving the 22 parking spaces.
Mr. Dave Simbari presented himself to the Board and stated 7 Flanders Lane.  As most of you might know I’ve been doing quite a bit of walking around Town for various insundry reasons.  When I was up at Springvale, I guess it was a couple of weeks ago, and I can tell you the amount of congestion up there, it really is a shame.  It’s a burden to these people. They can’t get in and out of their units and I can just tell you they really do need additional parking and to delay this any further would be a real travesty for the residents and for anyone who wants to visit them. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think we can cut this short because I think it’s the consensus of the Board that we will in fact approve the additional parking.  From my perspective, just for the record, how many units are there and how many parking spots are there at Springvale?

Ms. Tina Zerella responded 525 apartments as it stands today and there are 389 spots as of ’96.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess the point I want to make is I understand you don’t charge for parking but I think the owner has an obligation to provide parking for their residents and the fact that there is such a disparity between the number of units and the number of parking spaces is quite sad and a shame.  Notwithstanding the assertions that this is the only area where you can add 21 spots I think it behooves the owner to try and find additional parking for the area because people should not having to worry about leaving their home because they won’t find a parking spot.  I used to do that in Queens, but I don’t think we should be doing that in Westchester.  If there’s no further comment, I think that we can move on. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated before I make the motion I brought up at the work session and at the site visit on Sunday and it may be a separate issue but to me it’s the overall, looking at the bigger picture, does Springvale still have plans to build that other building with parking that we site visited maybe eight or nine years ago?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I know you raised that, Mr. Foley, at the work session.  There is no plan to do that. That is certainly not the subject of this application and we’ve heard what the Chairman said about the need to generate additional parking and that’s really why we’re here. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you might want to look at that old proposal to see if there’s an opportunity for additional parking there as well. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded understood.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we close the public hearing and reserve decision seconded.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated on the question, certainly I think we all recognize the need for the parking and intend to support it, I would just ask staff between now and the next meeting to again take a look and see if there’s any way to tinker with this so that we can get the same addition of 22 spaces with a little less proximity to the building including the possibility of what I raised earlier on building 23 which at least, to my eyes, looked fairly flat and wouldn’t be a huge expense to maybe gain a couple of spaces there and then possibly be able to subtract them out of the lot so as to get a little further away from the building. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Chairman, we’re happy to have Mr. Cronin’s office confer with Mr. Vergano and look at that again.  I think they both looked at that but we will endeavor to do that.  I would ask that in light of Mr. Foley’s motion that you ask staff to prepare a draft resolution for the next meeting because if the Board is inclined to vote in October and we have a shot at getting these folks parking prior to the winter.
Mr. John Klarl stated we were going to close and reserve.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated this way there will be a resolution, John, at the next meeting.

Mr. John Klarl responded that’s reserved.

Mr. Robert Foley stated still on the question I agree with what Ivan is saying if there’s any way that staff with the applicant could still look at tweaking it a little more.  I was the one at the site visit to bring up the possibility of over in that corner, that was pointed out by Mr. Bell, and I understand why you probably can’t do that.  But, I would still like to have them look at this a little more carefully.  With the resolution that’s being prepared that there be conditions as far as the assignment of the spots that would be closest to the units where the people were concerned that those being their parking spots as management had suggested.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we have no problem.  We’d offered that and no problem with that being incorporated into the draft.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also that the landscaping buffering that they be consulted on that also because while you feel for the greater majority that need the parking, you also feel for the two or three people in those units that are going to really be impacted.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded just to hit that last landscaping point, you’ll recall at the last meeting, at the work session Ms. Todd suggested more naturalistic-type landscaping a little less ornamental than had been proposed.  My client is willing to do that which the Board ultimately imposes so if staff wants to recommend something more naturalistic and incorporate that into the resolution.  You’ve the resident’s comments, my client does a nice job when they do the work they do the work nicely and that’s what they’d like to do here is something attractive and functional.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question? All in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*


PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 7-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval , Wetland and Tree Removal permits and for a Special Permit pursuant to Section 307-50 of the Town of Cortlandt Zoning Code for a Seminary for the construction of a new on-site wastewater treatment plant and for the renovation/reconstruction of the existing Dodge City Building for classroom and dormitory space for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown  on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” latest revision dated June 18, 2009 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Dormitory Renovation/Reconstruction” prepared by KG&D Architects, undated (with a presentation date of July 7, 2009.) 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing the applicant.  With me this evening Rabbi Yacob Rothberg from the Yeshiva, Tim Miller from Tim Miller Associates, Dan Sciarcia from Ralph Mastromonaco Engineering, Louise Doyle who is our sewage treatment plant technical consultant, Fred Wells from Tim Miller’s office is here.  When we were here at the first two sessions of the public hearing in connection with this what we believe to be a fairly finite application.  We’re seeking to simply restore, renovate, and reconstruct the Dodge City building to be used as a primarily a dormitory and to construct a sewage treatment plant.  During the first two sessions we got a number of different questions.  We attempted to respond to every question that we’d gotten from the Board, from staff and relevant issues that have been raised by others.  In the last month we’re aware of some of the documents that have been circulated.  We’re most pleased with a letter that was issued by the Hen Hud school district addressing their on-site sewage situation which we believe confirms what we had indicated.  Louise Doyle is going to speak to some of the questions that we were left with at the end of the last meeting.  You will recall that Ms. Todd spent a while asking us to do additional testing of water quality in particular relative to the stream that crosses the property.  We also got some questions from staff and from the Board about quantitative water issues relative to potential downstream flooding.  Tim Miller’s office in conjunction with Mr. Mastromonaco’s office and Ms. Doyle generated a written response to you dated August 20th.  We actually performed the testing that we had objected to doing.  We offered it anyway.  We did the empirical analysis of the quantitative flooding and we’re going to make a very brief presentation to make sure the Board is clear on what we’ve submitted.  We believe we’ve hit the issues that have been raised.  As you all know and as you discussed briefly at the work session, primary regulatory jurisdiction over the sewage treatment plant is not vested with the Town of Cortlandt and with the Planning Board.  It’s vested with the New York State DEC before whom we have a SPDES application and before the Westchester County Department of Health.  They’ve got the main issues.  They’re wrestling with setting the permit limits and making sure that the system is designed is appropriate to achieve those limits.  With that having been said, we hope we’ve addressed some of the concerns that were raised by Board members looking to understand the watershed more.  The watershed is what it is.  the quantity of water flowing through is what it is and we believe we’ve demonstrated empirically that from a qualitative standpoint and a quantitative standpoint the construction of this sewage treatment plant, the maximum capacity of 23,000 gallons per day will not have any adverse impacts particularly in light of the standards that are going to be set by the DEC and are going to be enforced by the Westchester County DOH.  I’m going to let Louise briefly walk us through the letter and the materials that were submitted and we look forward with moving forward with the application and getting this public hearing closed. 
Ms. Louise Doyle stated my first reference is going to be to the August 20th, 2009 letter from Tim Miller Associates.  It should be in everybody’s packet.  Some of the questions that were raised at the last meeting we have addressed in this letter, specifically flooding, nutrification, a bid on SEQRA and the downstream water testing.  First off, as far as flooding goes: it’s a relatively large watershed of which the Yeshiva property is a small part.  When you take the discharge from the sewage treatment plant of 23,000 gallons a day and you take that volume as part of the total volume in the watershed and that’s contributing to what goes downstream, our discharge is 0.02% of that watershed which basically under a 10-year storm event we contribute 0.02% of the total flow which is basically negligible.  It will not be noticed the presence or the absence it’s not going to change the volume of water going down through the Watch Hill Road colvert in a 10-year storm event.  The second issue that we were asked to address by Ms. Todd relates to sampling of the downstream watershed.  As David said, we originally didn’t want to do this, however we decided to do the sampling anyway.  The last page of the letter is a table.  That table compares the water quality results in a sample collected at Furnace Wood Roads and Maple Avenue to what we anticipate to be the effluent limits from our sewage treatment plant.  As you can see from this, this biological oxygen demand, we anticipate that our discharge will have no more than 5 mg/liter.  At the date we tool the sample the stream had 8.4 mg/liter.  So, that was above the plant’s discharge levels.  The plant will be discharging dissolved oxygen at a minimum of 7.0 mg/liter which is that is necessary to support aquatic life.  The dissolved oxygen in the stream on the day we took the sample was 2.7, significantly lower and therefore not able to support aquatic life.  The same thing, suspended solids, the maximum was 10 of the plant, the one sample from the stream was 30.  What this shows is that with these three important parameters BOD dissolved oxygen suspended solids at all times our maximum levels will be below what is already in the stream.  There was also, Mr. Steinmetz spoke about the sewage treatment plants at the school district.  I don’t want anybody to think that we may have said something in error last month because it can be said that what the school district wrote and what I may have said at the meeting contradicted each other.  What determines whether something is a septic system or not strictly is whether or not it has a surface discharge.  In this case the schools have a surface discharge although the sewage may have gone through a septic tank be treated by a sand filter, it’s then collected, disinfected and goes to a surface discharge.  Therefore, technically it’s considered a sewage treatment plant and not a septic system.  What the director of facilities wrote is correct.  There is a surface discharge.  That discharge is disinfected through a chlorine contact tank and then sent out to the stream.  That statement is correct.  It goes through a septic tank and then goes through it’s actually a subsurface sand filter but it’s treated underground.  The effluent is from that underground treatment and is then collected in a pipe sent to a system where it’s disinfected and then it goes out to a stream.  That discharge to the stream by definition makes it more of a plant.  If, when it had gone underground it did not get further treatment, it’s not collected in a pipe but rather remains in the ground, is intended to remain in the ground then it is technically a septic system.  But, the function he described accurately.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked does the discharge require a SPDES permit?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes it does.  And, it has a SPDES permit.  It’s monitored, as he said, they monitor, they sample, they submit the reports.  That’s all accurate, that’s correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked with a normal septic system, even a residential unit, the effluent goes into a tank.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated antirobic action separates the solids from the liquids, they sink to the bottom, the liquid overflows into a field.  The effluent, that liquid that flows into a field is not treated technically, is just treated through natural action of the soils.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued and that flow could migrate, if you’re near a stream, it could eventually migrate to the water table, or to a stream or possibly some other water body.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded it could.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the flow from that type of an operation, as compared to the discharge of 23,000 gallons per day of a treatment facility given that you have the same, for arguments sake, if you have a house that has the same number of students the Yeshiva may have, but you have a septic system, which is what they have now that’s not working, would the flow be roughly equivalent that comes out of the septic system as compared to that which comes out of the sewage treatment plant?  It’s discharged into the soil, or it’s discharge into the stream.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded the volume of sewage it’s either going to be discharged to the stream through the treatment plant or eventually discharged to the ground water, through the treatment, through the soils on the lot.  The volume’s the same it’s just how it gets there.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated regardless of what system is used with comparing a sewage treatment plant versus a septic system you still have effluent going into the environment and the grounds nearby and your point is that the quality of that effluent from the sewage treatment plant will be far greater, or better than the quality of an effluent just from a septic system.  Am I putting words in your mouth?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded sort of.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated correct me.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated my point is that right now the quality of the effluent from the sewage treatment plant when it is a properly run monitored functioning sewage treatment plant, in this case is better than the quality of the water to which it’s discharging.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that I understand but I’m trying to compare it to a discharge from a septic system.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded you really can’t compare the two because the siting standards for a septic system, horizontal distance to wetlands to water courses, vertical distances to ground water were based upon sufficient treatment in the soils.  When the liquid that’s being treated through the soils when it eventually meets ground water or in the case of somehow it gets its way around a surface water body will be treated sufficiently to not have a negative impact.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated however, both systems flow into the environment? 

Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued even if it’s a different quality for better or worse it’s possibly for the same number of people the same gallons per day, one way versus the other.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the only way to avoid that would be connected to a sewer system.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded you’d still have the same volume.  It will just be discharged to the environment somewhere else.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated a different location.  Before we hear the comments from the public I’ve been made aware of, and I’m a neighbor of the Yeshiva as many of you here are also, and I drive by there everyday and I was very disturbed this morning to see these signs placed on telephone poles throughout the area.  If you can’t see it, it says “Warning! Biohazard area proposed.”  It’s got a typical chemical triangle with some other kind of design in the middle that sort of scares you.  These were posted throughout the area.  In my 21 years of working on the Zoning Board and the Planning Board, I have to say I’ve never seen anything like this from our citizens and whether they rightly oppose or agree with an application, something like this has never been resorted to.  I’m really appalled and disappointed at those, and I’m sure it’s only a few, it doesn’t represent the entire population of the area, it’s only a few but that’s all it takes.  This does no good.  It does not help anybody.  Only makes the situation more aggravated and does not lend any help to reaching a solution.  I hope that tonight the comments that we receive from the public, as we’ve been receiving are constructive and that they focus on the issues in this application which are: 1) the renovation of a building, and 2) the sanitary treatment plant that is being proposed.  Those are the two issues at hand.  I hope that the comments focus on those two issues and my vote tonight will be to close this public hearing.  I hope we get to that point.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is a public hearing and with Mr. Bianchi’s comments in mind we’re here to talk about the reconstruction and renovation of a building and the installation of a sewage treatment plant.  We are long past discussing the Yeshiva’s right to be there.  We’re long past discussing the number of students and faculty and visitors that may be at the site.  Please let’s keep the comments to those two issues.  Is there anybody who wishes to comment?

Mr. Nelson Trusler presented himself to the Board and stated 1 Hillview Court.  Since the last meeting I was informed that the total maximum discharge that could be allowed for this treatment plant is 8,395,000 gallons per year and in the past month I did a breakdown of that for you guys.  Here’s some statistics numbers that I’d like you to keep in mind throughout my presentation.  69,958.33 gallons per month would be another discharge.  15,546.3 per week, 2,331.94 gallons per day, 97.16 gallons per hour, 1.62 gallons per minute and 0.027 gallons per second.  When I was at Blue Mountain Middle School there’s a joke that whenever it would rain because this area can’t handle one day of rain, that you would see a goose floating on the third base at the softball field.  Low and behold, whenever it rained, you could look out from the art room and you would see a goose floating in the water on third base at the softball field.  I was in 8th grade in spring of 2008 and we had a two-day storm over the weekend and when I came into my English class on the first floor, the room was flooded and the carpet was damp for several days.  I was also informed from last time the discharge was two garden hoses and that it wouldn’t be that big of an impact on the ecosystem.  I’d like to point out that it may be two garden hoses but this would add up over time.  Let’s say you look at your finger nail and I took a pebble the size of my finger nail and dropped it in one spot.  The next day I came back with a pebble the same size and I dropped it in that same spot and I kept doing this and doing this for four years.  For four days it wouldn’t make a big difference there’d be a couple of pebbles on the ground but after four years I would have a small diorama of the Rocky Mountains.  I’m just saying that over time this would build up and it would have its own effect on the ecosystem.  It was also said that with modern technology we would have watertight pipes and it would be a more secure and structured pipeline and yes, today’s technology is much better and superior than yesterday’s but I’d also like to say that things can break and things happen.  For example, in Chernobyl there was a nuclear incident, the Town is now a ghost town.  They said the Titanic was unsinkable it lies at the bottom of the ocean.  The Hindenburg burst into flames in the middle of the sky.  Electronics short circuit every day and whenever somebody fires a gun there’s always a chance that it would jam.  What I would also like to point out is that if this pipeline breaks or if there’s a malfunction where would all this discharge go?  For example, you could have raw sewage leaking all over the area.  The discharge could flood somebody’s basement who lives by the pipeline.  I would also like to say that the septic system was never properly maintained and it failed and this presented a potential biohazard to the students as well as to the staff who would reside on the campus.  What is to say, based on previous information that if there is a malfunction and there is a break how fast will it take to fix this problem?  Finally, I would like to propose that the applicant could reconstruct their septic field in accordance with County septic laws in relation to density versus usable acreage and I believe that would be a more eco-friendly solution to the problem.  I would like to thank you for hearing my opinion and take what I have said in consultants over the decision of this topic.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment on the application?
Ms. Terry Kardos presented herself to the Board and stated I live on Montrose Station Road between Maple Avenue and the Blue Mountain Reservation. First, I would like to thank Mr. Bianchi for his comments about the tone set by those biohazard posters.  I also think that was in very poor taste and bad judgment and it was a reprehensible act that was just inflammatory.  I’m sorry I wasn’t able to attend the previous hearings.  I wasn’t able to find the minutes.  Does the possibility of connecting to the Peekskill sewer lines or sewer district exist?  If that is a real possibility, could you give me a brief explanation of why that is not still on the table?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded the applicant has decided not to pursue that course in terms of connecting to a sewer.  

Mr. David Steinmetz responded my client spent approximately $100,000 doing engineering studies to connect to the Stevens Lane pump station, designed it had three different connectivity alternatives.  We discussed that with staff and with the Town and it was rebuffed and rejected by the Town.  We did an about face as a result of feedback from the Town of Cortlandt after we had committed to doing the sewage connection.  We then spent the ensuing 18 months doing a comprehensive analysis of the on-site septic system and just to address Mr. Trusler’s comments so he understands, we received a letter from the Westchester County Department of Health indicating that we could not have any further serviced the septic system.  They determined that this was a “priority matter” and urged us and by letter to the DEC with a copy to the Town urged the Town for this applicant to proceed with an on-site sewage treatment plant.  We currently have an application pending before the New York State DEC being reviewed and processed as well as in front of the Westchester County Department of Health for this on-site sewage treatment plant.  This is the proposal.

Ms. Terry Kardos asked would it be possible to find out why the Town rejected the possibility of the sewer hook-up?  Was it a matter of cost?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded without basing our evaluation it required substantial upgrades to that Stevens Lane pump station in terms of odor protection and hydrology.

Ms. Terry Kardos stated basically it ended up being a matter of cost that it was too expensive, too little bang for the buck kind of thing?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that was part of it yes.

Ms. Terry Kardos stated my only concern is this is a neighbor way across the back yard I just have some concern as to odors and maintenance but other than that I’m fine with everything.

Mr. Phil Tumbarello presented himself to the Board and stated I live on Fairview Court, very close to the facility.  I’ll take care of the business I’m here to take care of first and then I have some additional comments.  In the last week or so a number of citizens have passed around a petition and I would like to present the petition to the Board tonight.  I understand the Board’s paperwork on this application is immense.  I would ask the Board to review all of the paperwork.  I may touch on a couple of the items that I’m familiar with myself but the petition is called a petition in opposition of the sewage treatment facility proposed by the Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir and it’s addressed to the Town of Cortlandt Planning Board.  It’s dated August 2009.  It reads: “Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir located at 141 Furnace Woods Road in Cortlandt Manor, Westchester County New York has proposed a newly constructed sewage treatment facility on their grounds pursuant to section 307-50 of the Town of Cortlandt Zoning Code.  The discharge effluent from this proposed sewage treatment facility will flow directly into the tributary network, the wetlands and waterways of Rose Lake and immediately discharge into Furnace Brook which runs through the property of Blue Mountain Middle School and Furnace Woods Elementary School.”  I believe there’s been substantial discussion on that.  The petition simply states: “we the undersigned are opposed to this sewage treatment facility and demand this application be denied.”  I have here which I’ll present to the Board, over 300 signatures which were gathered only in a very short period of time.  If anyone here hasn’t signed the petition, there will be blanks that they can sign later.  The strong opposition that I think we all see to the sewage treatment facility concerns the fact that while Chairman Kessler you’ve stated that it is a permitted use.  I’ve been trying to follow these proceedings as best I can and the permitted use was for a day school, 60 students and 20 staff, half of whom would live on-site.  I believe our current Supervisor Ms. Puglisi at one point said “how do we go from 60 to 200, 300?”  Whatever the final number is and that’s a question that as close as I’ve been following these proceedings, I’ve not seen answered.  It grew during the last 18, 20 years, however many years it’s been without apparent oversight or concern by the administration of this Town and I think what you have here with the people who are signing this petition is an on-going concern that there was this unbridled growth from the original permitted use to what is now a dormitory, a multiple dwelling situation that’s been put into an R-40 zone.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi interrupted as I stated in my other comments, what you’re talking about is the right to exist.  This is not the question before us.  We’re going backwards here, we’re not going forwards.  The question before us, again, sanitary sewer treatment plant and the renovation of the building.  Not the number of inhabitants, not the right to exist, not the use of the land.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we’ve gone through it the last two public hearings the whole explanation of why the issue of what’s the permitted use there is not what’s before this Board in terms of the use of the facility as it’s currently being used.  There’s been a ruling on that.  We’re bound by that ruling and we can’t vary that.  We can’t change that ruling.  It’s not an appropriate part of this public hearing to debate whether this Yeshiva should be allowed to have the kind of use it now has.  That’s just not before us as an issue.  That’s why Mr. Bianchi has asked before to just stick to what the public hearing is on.
Mr. Phil Tumberello stated I understand.  Basically, what you’ve limited me to speak about is the 23,500 gallons of effluent.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’ve limited you to speak about what the application is about. 

Mr. Phil Tumbarello stated I understand that sir.  The amount of effluent that’s going into this area, these are wetland areas.  Some of us live nearby.  At the last monthly meeting there was a lot of discussion about whether or not there has been an environmental impact study.  My concern is what will the impact be to the environment?  Will the additional effluent, assuming this is treated properly at all times, have any impact on the water level?  I heard the presentation earlier this evening that is a small percentage of the total amount of water in the watershed area.  I think when you take a small group, say the people in this room and compare this to the population of the United States you can run your statistics any way you want.  Here, I think the focus must be on what is the impact yes to the entire watershed because some of it will flow into reservoirs, into lakes, into rivers.  Not a word, did I hear, of any study being made about the impact to the immediately surrounding areas.  Will it add to the water table in and about the area of the Yeshiva?  Will it add to effluent that flows into Rose Lake where we know children swim and people fish?  Will this effluent add to the water that flows across our elementary school and our high school?  There was discussion at the last meeting about having such a study.  I don’t know if one’s been approved.  I would ask that this Board give serious consideration before granting any further rights to the applicant that there be such a study done.  I also heard the woman who spoke earlier say that they did a test of some water in the vicinity of Furnace Woods Road and Maple Avenue and I think there were eight parts per liter in the present water and that their effluent would be limited to five parts per liter.  If the eight parts that we already have in the water in our area is considered high, I would ask what would be the impact of adding any additional parts to that?  Finally, because I do sense that there are a number of other people here who may want to address this panel, I would refer the Planning Board to the Town of Cortlandt master plan set Chapter 6 ‘Utilities’ from July of 2004 where it’s part of the Town Zone master plan it stated: “The Town discourages the future use of privately owned sewage treatment plants.”  I believe that’s what’s on the agenda tonight.  I ask this panel to look at the Town’s own master plan and moving forward would exclude liberations.  I thank you for putting up with me once again.  I’ve been as short as I can possibly could be.
Mr. Steve Rutolo presented himself to the Board and stated I live on Lakeview Road.  I brought some perspective for everybody here so they can see what we’re dealing with because many people weren’t here last week.  This gives you a better idea of what the situation is on the ground in the area.  In either case we have the map of the area which we finally decided to take a look at as a group so that we can see where the disburtion of this particular facility is intended on going which hasn’t been brought up by the way previous to this.  You can actually see that this is the Ohr Hameir Congregation right here.  This is the wetlands facility in which they intend to discharge into.  It flows directly into across the Maple Avenue, down through the entire neighborhood inundating all these homes with water and problems all the way down into the Rose Lake area and down into the school systems of both Blue Mountain School and the Furnace Woods Elementary School.  You get a bit of a better perspective of what we’re actually dealing with.  Some of these photographs here are fairly typical flood water situations that occur almost on a bi-weekly or monthly basis whenever it rains this area can’t handle another drop of water.  Most of our homes are barely tolerable as it is right now and adding anything to it is going to be a serious consideration.  In addition to that, just so that everybody gets a chance to look at that, I’ve put together some numbers that have been talked about today.  What they say what we have is a zero-flow scenario.  It’s been suggested that two ¾ garden hoses running supposedly into our ecosystem is a minor inconvenience, however it’s designed with an eight-inch colvert pipe for that discharge function.  The discharge of 23,000 gallons a day is 6,900/200 gallons per months and 8,395,000 gallons per year which is going to pick up some additional effluent erosion into our ecosystem.  On top of that, the people that are affected here originally as we spoke about was the original 80 is now being proposed to 300.  However, with the Furnace Woods Elementary School at 444, Blue Mountain Middle School at 755, the Cortlandt community is 575 homes in the immediate area which comes up to 2,300 people for a grand total of 3,499 and I was very conservative with these figures.  That’s the effect of what you’re going to affect in this community.  On top of that, the exposure potentials, don’t really want to discuss this because nobody really wants to deal with that but with the 575 homes and approximately $450,000 or $486,000 per home is $279,000,000.  If we loose 25% of that you’re looking at $69,000,000 of losses to the people of this community.  There are some viable options here.  I think we have to take a serious look at these situations.  As far as we’re concerned this is not going to be dumped into our Lake, into our neighborhood.  It’s plain, flat out, and the people here who represent the community is telling you “no.”  The facility has the options of either rebuilding their sub-surface systems, rebuild a sub-surface sewage disposal systems to what they can limit and what they can occupy on that site just the way we all do.  If they can connect to the sewer, whatever the viable factors are that would limit their occupancy, that’s perfectly acceptable and/or they have to find an alternative discharge and disburse route so it doesn’t ruin our neighborhood.  As far as we’re concerned that’s the end of the story.  We demand that this not be approved.  We’re not going to take it.  We’re not going to tolerate it.  It is diametrically opposed to our neighborhood and that’s what I’ll leave you with at this point.  In addition, we’re just barely getting into this.  This thing is trying to be rushed through over the summer when the majority of the people weren’t able to get up and speak.  We’re just getting into our engineering which we’re not being paid for but as a community effort are putting together the information for you to make valid judgments.  But, we need more time and this has to stay open so we can present additional information.  We are not going to allow this thing to get rushed through and we have the petition out there right now.  This is a critical issue.  We’re not going to allow it to go any further.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I just want to say it’s not going to be a popular comment but I find that the tone of the last comments rather troubling because it’s one thing to express your opposition and to say why you don’t believe something should be approved but to sit here and essentially just state that no matter what this cannot happen really just turns the whole system on its head.  
Mr. Phil Boyle stated it is America though.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded it is America but we don’t do land use by majority vote of a neighborhood.  If we did we wouldn’t need a Planning Board we would just take a referendum on everybody’s application.

Ms. Boyle stated you’re telling us we have to accept things.

Mr. Steve Rutolo stated we’re showing you the valued facts today and they have been ignored through this entire process.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded nothing’s been ignored at this point.

Mr. Steve Rutolo stated nobody knew where the effluent was being discharged until we put together the map to show you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s not quite true.  We understood where the water was flowing and how it goes around Town and into the Hudson eventually.  We understand that.

Mr. Phil Boyle presented himself to the Board and stated I live on 49 Montrose Station Road.  I’ve live in this community and surrounding area for 65 years.  I was a contractor for 30 years.  Most of what I was going to say was already said but I would like to just enter this is an intermittent stream where all this effluent is going.  I’d like to know what happens when the stream stops, which it does periodically during the year?  I’ve walked that area all my life, and when it stops in just the effluent from the sewage treatment just enters the stream by itself there’s a tremendous amount of chlorine in it.  Do we know the chlorine count as it’s going to go enter into that?  I was told by a Supervisor of the Peekskill water filter plant that the only way that could be done is if effluent from the sewage treatment plant to go in with the amount of chlorine would have to be another water treatment plant alongside of it.  There’s one in Long Island.  That’s the only one in New York State.  It almost sounds impossible.  How could all that chlorine?  Do we have the count?  Does anybody…do we know the levels of the chlorine that are going to enter into the stream?  We don’t have those answers.  There’s a lot of questions we’ve all asked here and the Board doesn’t have the answer, through no fault of their own.  We don’t have the answers.  That’s why we have to have an environmental impact study.  I don’t understand how the Board has waived environmental impact study.  We have environmental impact studies for fish, lizards and frogs, why don’t we have it for our children that the pollutants go through their schoolyards?  I just think this is outrageous.  I think there should be an environmental impact study before this can go further and just for the health and safety of the people here that want to build something for their children.  I think all the children deserve an environmental impact study.  I would like to request to the Board to make an environmental impact study to be fair to everybody including the people that want to build.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated before we go on could we get that last point addressed.  There is a statement in the report that was submitted dated June 30th that “this facility will use ultraviolet disinfection” and not use chlorine disinfection.  
Ms. Louise Doyle responded that is correct.

Mr. Phil Boyle stated we won’t be able to answer the questions to be fair with everybody if we do not have environmental impact study.  Solve all the questions for everybody to be fair to everybody.
Mr. Ivan Kline asked is the answer to the last comment that there’s not going to be chlorine disinfection and this will not be…

Mr. Phil Boyle continued maybe the Chairman to the schools could vote on it.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Mr. Chairman you are correct.  As we described when we first appeared here and at the initial presentation at the public hearing, this is not a chlorinated system.  This system that we heard discussed over at Blue Mountain Middle School is a chlorinated system.  This is an ultraviolet situation.  Not a chlorinated system and I would just simply indicate to the Board that you will recall two meetings back when Mr. Vergano confirmed what Ms. Doyle explained to the Board and that is the details of the effluent limits are not set by this Board.  It’s not set by the Town’s Engineering Department.  It’s set by the New York State DEC.  We have a SPDES permit currently pending.  That is a public process and that situation before the DEC takes into account all of the science affiliated with the stream and the discharge into the stream.  That’s where those issues will be finally adjudicated.

Mr. Phil Boyle asked this is all well and good but why can we not have an environmental impact study for everybody?  That would clear everything up.  The chlorine, that system that these people are talking about, that’s a new system, that’s very good but do we know what’s going to happen when it enters the stream when there’s no water in the stream.  It’s an intermittent stream.
Mr. Steven Kessler responded I was just going to say that at previous meetings it is the State that regulates and the State has standards for intermittent streams.  What the applicant said they are higher standards.

Mr. Phil Boyle asked but wouldn’t it make it simpler for the Town to have environmental impact study so you have all the information when people ask these questions you can say “well here it is Phil.”  Why won’t you have an environmental impact study?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we’ve asked them and they’ve given us information on the treatment plant which is our concern.  Ultimately, we could approve it and if we were the State could disapprove it because they may not like.

Mr. Phil Boyle stated I’m aware of that but if we have the impact study all these questions would be answered.  You wouldn’t have to answer them, you would have the study.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it’s the State’s purview though.  They’re the ones that have to issue the permit, not us.

Mr. Phil Boyle responded I understand but why don’t you require – you require an environmental impact study for fish, frogs, lizards in swamps.  Why can’t we do it for our children?  They’re going to be affected down stream.  That stream goes through two schools.  If you’re a resident of the area, which I’m sure you are you must have children or grandchildren on soccer fields.  They’re flooded.  What happens when the flood recedes it goes through the lawn and everything.  Are the kids going to play in it if we don’t know what’s in it?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded but that is what is monitored and regulated by the State. 

Mr. Phil Boyle responded it might too late though.  What if it overflows?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it’s monitored, what, daily?

Mr. Phil Boyle asked why don’t you have this environmental impact study?  Can you answer me that?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I’m not clear what you want to see in the environmental impact study.

Mr. Phil Boyle responded I don’t know what I want to see but I’d like to have it so we all can see.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Mr. Miller?

Mr. Phil Boyle stated you have an environmental impact study if a guy does an addition on his house and he lives next to a pond.

Mr. Tim Miller presented himself to the Board and stated president of Tim Miller Associates.  I’m an environmental specialist and environmental planner and I work as a consultant to the Yeshiva.  The Board, as you know, you’re an administrative body.  You do not make the laws.  Your job is to carry out the administrative rules and regulations of the Town of Cortlandt as it relates to zoning, and subdivision rules and the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act.  This gentleman has asked the question “why aren’t you making them do an environmental impact statement to answer all of our questions?”  Well, first of all, I want to say that we’ve submitted a rather substantial packet of information to the Town.  It includes an environmental assessment form which is required by SEQRA.  It includes an engineering report setting forth the conceptual plans for the sewage treatment plant.  It includes a site plan and it includes landscape plans, and it includes wetland permit application and the criteria whereby we believe we comply with a wetland permit.  Of course this Board hasn’t rendered an opinion or a determination on SEQRA yet, but no Board in the State of New York can require an applicant wily Nelly to do an environmental impact statement unless the criteria set forth in New York State Law is met.  That criteria is that after a reasoned elaboration you must determine that there is a significant adverse environmental impact.  We’ve submitted information to you.  You’ve heard a lot of information during these public hearings and the testimony that explains why we’re doing what we’re doing.  We are on a piece of property right now that has a failing septic system.  That system is discharging, has discharged, untreated sewage into the ground for some time.  There have been substantial monies and efforts spent to try to correct it, to try to place a treatment system on this site, a septic system.  As Mr. Steinmetz indicated, there was a substantial monies and time spent seeking to tie into the Town’s treatment facility.  We are correcting what is really an adverse environmental impact taking place right now.  We are making the situation better.  If you were for the environment, you would be for this sewage treatment plant because it’s correcting an adverse situation right now.  We’re over, we’ve just recently submitted information that shows that when there is water flowing in the stream that water actually carries more pollutants than would discharged from the sewage treatment plant.  This discharge from the sewage treatment plant based on the one test that we did will actually dilute the water quality and make it better than it is right now because that water quality has 2.7 parts per million of dissolved oxygen.  Fish can’t live in that water.  The discharge from the treatment plant will actually be higher than that.  You have a set of facts before you.  Your job is to determine will there be a significant adverse impact and I believe that this applicant on the record has submitted ample information to you to demonstrate that in fact there will not be a significant adverse impact.  I’m not discounting what the public may feel about this but your job is not to require an impact statement to answer questions.  Your job is you require an impact statement if there is a potential for a significant adverse impact and right now you’re hearing information and your job will be to determine if in fact that is the case.  Personally, professionally, I haven’t heard that yet.  I’ve done a lot of environmental impact statements in the Town of Cortlandt.  If you make that determination based on the evidence so be it but it’s not just because.  Thank you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was extremely eloquent and aptly put.  It’s very important for all of you to know we filed our application with the DEC and with DOH.  I’ve said that three times tonight.  Neither regulatory agency has urged this Board to conduct an environmental impact statement.  Both of those agencies are well aware of as Tim said the full environmental assessment form that we’ve generated, the engineering studies, and the wetlands studies.  Those regulatory agencies have found the empirical data not generalized community opposition, but the empirical data that has been submitted thus far to be suitable to proceed with their review.  So, as the Chair indicated those are the agencies that will ultimately wrestle with those issues.  You’ll recall what I said to you at the first meeting, I said to you “your authority really is where is the plant going, physically located?”  And, we explained to you again going back to Tim’s comment, if you’re for the environment, we’re actually eliminating an impermeable surface area and creating permeable surface area to absorb the water.  That’s it.  Really, your jurisdiction begins and ends there and we hope we can move forward.
Mr. Phil Boyle stated I’m not here to tell you your job.  I don’t work or get paid for anybody.  I’m here just looking out maybe for the kids in school.  These people have a problem.  I grant that and I grant what they’re saying about fixing their problem.  I understand that because they have children but why should their problems be put on the backs of our children.  I don’t think it’s fair.  That’s all I have to say.

Mr. Steve Rutolo stated one of the big problems that we’re having out there that’s being researched right now is what’s buried in the back of the Yeshiva.  There’s several questions about what’s going on in the Town of Peekskill and there may be some issues of materials buried back there which the environmental impact statement may discover.  In addition, so that everybody understands what a sewage treatment plant is.  It’s an artificial generator of biological material.  Yes, when it’s working perfectly, I’m certain it’s going to be a wonderful thing.  However, when it doesn’t it can be a definite catastrophe.  Just put those two items into perspective and that’s why we need more time to do more research.

Mr. Rich Kennedy presented himself to the Board and stated 10 Robin Road.  I too was upset about Mr. Bianchi’s reference to the posters however we don’t know who put them there.  I know I didn’t and pretty much everybody I know hasn’t done it.  I resent the tone that you’re implying residents did it.  That’s all.  Simple fact.  You don’t know who put it there.  Be that as it may.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked if residents in opposition to this application didn’t do it, then who would?

Mr. Rich Kennedy responded let’s go back to Tawana Brawley and Al Sharpton in Wappingers.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated let’s be realistic.  I mentioned that it may not be anybody in this audience or anybody viewing this meeting.  It may be one person out of 10,000, but it still was done.

Mr. Rich Kennedy stated be that as it may.  I’m just voicing my opinion.  My main concern about this operation of the sewage treatment facility is operating it properly.  You’ve all made notice of operating properly.  The past history of violations of code adherence to fire and electrical code, what happens when they stop doing sewer code violations and now the sewage is backing up wherever it wants to go?  Do we have any assurance or any way to monitor this so that we as the tax paying people of this Town who will be responsible for the clean-up, maintenance, and fixing of the subsequent problems upstream, downstream, cross-stream in the Hudson River.  If and when they decide not to maintain the property which they have shown a propensity to, who’s responsible for that?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded the short answer is we can request the Town get the daily reports from…
Mr. Rich Kennedy responded but how does that protect me as Mr. tax payer?  I’ve got three kids in the school system.  My taxes go up every year or every couple of years.  Their taxes don’t go up now they decide “we don’t want to do the sewage treatment plant it’s too much effort.”  The Town of Cortlandt is not going to pay for it.  Who’s going to pay for it?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded they’re not going to pay for it if it fails….

Mr. Rich Kennedy continued then what are we going to do?  Close them down.  We can’t do that.  They have a right to exist.  You just said that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I want to answer the gentleman’s question.  We explained, one of the reasons why the Yeshiva retained Ms. Doyle, Ms. Doyle spent 23 years at the Westchester County Health Department dealing with these issues.  There’s probably no one more expert in it.  She explained to the Board that this facility would be closed down as other facilities in the County, the State and the region get closed down if they violate the laws and then the question was what would happen?  What would happen is the Yeshiva would begin pumping out its tanks on a regular periodic basis which is precisely what’s going on right now.  There’s a clear protocol that’s administered by the County as to what would happen.  It’s not this Board’s jurisdiction.  Obviously if there’s a problem it will be shut down and it will be rectified.  You’ve already spoken to us about the issue of making sure that the daily logs that we explained have to be maintained that get sent into the County.  Mr. Chairman, if you want us to send them to Mr. Vergano, duplicate sets will be sent to the Department of Technical Services on the same regular basis that they’re sent to the County.  I hope that answers the question.

Mr. Rich Kennedy stated their propensity in the past I’m not liking the record.  Mr. Miller did make a comment about your job, as the Planning Board, is to take care of the Town edicts and what not and the part of no expansion of something that can’t work already I think needs to be re-looked at because I don’t think their plan’s going to fly in the long run and ultimately affects us.

Mr. Joel Benedict presented himself to the Board and stated Lakeview Avenue West.  First let me state I am not happy what I’m seeing tonight out of the crowd.  I do not condone this.  I feel it dissuades from our cause.  It makes us appear as a mob.  This is a not a mob.  This is just some upset people and I hope you understand that.  I do not condone the actions.  I hope not to inflame anybody.  Right now I hope to get back to some facts of this case.  The first issue I’d like to bring up is the applicant’s supposed right for the renovation of the Dodge City building.  This is a pre-existing non-conforming use of the property under Town’s zoning code there is no right to rebuild this building.  Chapter 307.77, 307.78, 307.80 and specifically 307.79 prohibit such a reconstruction/rehabilitation.  If the applicant wishes to dispute that right, be happy to go before the ZBA and get a determination.  If the applicant’s asserting their right to rebuild this building is under the threat of a RLUPA suit, let it so be stated.  That’s the statute that says they can do basically anything they want.  The zoning laws be damned.  I just want a clarification on that right.  At the last meeting, Ms. Doyle, thankfully gave us the names of some plants, waste treatment plants that we could look up.  It did allow me the opportunity to do some research, specifically I took a look at the Wild Oaks and the Oakridge waste treatment plants in Lewisboro.  Based on what I could find the public search records.  I see these plants are owned by the Town.  I would like to know if these plants were ever privately owned, or if they were totally owned by the municipality because, if these were privately owned plants that had problems that the municipality had to take over, it should be a concern to this Board.  Wild Oaks plant is currently going through some sort of an upgrade right now.  I’d like to know the extent and the reason for this upgrade.  I also noticed that as part of this upgrade the Town is being required to replace a colvert on Nash Lane at the expense of the Town.  I’d like to know what Lewisboro’s expense, pardon me it’s North Salem’s expense because it’s not in Lewisboro.  I’d like to know what the expense of that colvert repair is.  Would this come be an issue for the Town of Cortlandt?  Are we going to have to absorb any extra expense in the construction of this plant?  There are also some complaints from residents about flooding from the plant.  I could not find exactly what those complaints were.  I will have to admit Town of Lewisboro’s records as a Town are not as a concise and nice and available as the records of the Town of Cortlandt and I commend the Town for making those records available.  Oakridge plant; they also had some sort of problems with replacing concrete flooring at the facility.  I’d like to know more about these problems especially what caused them, if this was due to a lack of maintenance.  The records that I saw, the Town had set up a $500,000 contingency budget to be prepared for these types of problems.  Ms. Taylor, I don’t think $25,000 is enough.
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I can agree with you on that.
Mr. Joel Benedict stated I also got an opportunity to look at the Anderson school waste treatment plant.  I believe this is the Anderson school for autistic children which is located on Route 9.  This treatment plant, an open plant, is supposedly most closely resembling the plant that’s being proposed here.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Hyde Park sir?

Mr. Joel Benedict stated that’s what I assume it is.  The one in Hyde Park, technically it’s Staatsburg.  It’s off of Route 9.  It’s a rather large facility significantly larger than the property proposed here.  As best I can tell there is not any residents located near this plant.  It’s all contained on their property.  It was also interesting to note that they also had a water treatment facility there.  I could not find any water discharge permits for Springvale and Baltic Estates.  I’d like to know if those are possibly listed under different names or is that some kind of operation that does not require a water discharge permit.  I think it’s a point to note.  Next issue the FEIS.  I don’t understand why no final environmental impact study is being required.  One was done for Valeria in 2004 and one was also required for Furnace Brook Development in 2006.  I’d like to know how this project avoids that impact statement.  Mr. Tumbarello did mention the master plan.  Originally, I guess it was written in 1991, I’m sure it was a considerable expense to the Town.

Mr. John Klarl stated I think he mentioned the 2004 Master Plan.

Mr. Joel Benedict responded yes.  The last update I found was 2004, Chapter 6, policy 103 specifically calls for the discouragement of small privately owned sewer treatment plants.  I’d like to know when the administration changed that plan and when did they decide to actually encourage small privately owned sewage treatment plants and what effect this decision will have on further development in this Town and further sewer failures.  Please don’t inflame anything.  It appears to me the Town is giving preferential treatment to this application in consideration of this proposal.  Any other citizen or business that brings this type of application to the Town seems to be subject to much more scrutiny than this current proposal.  I’d like to know why the Town is bending over backwards to accommodate the applicant?  Why and who at the County Board of Health is pushing so hard to have a sewage treatment plant built here?  It’s been made out that this plant is the only option to address the sewage problems which are solely being created by the applicant for whatever reason.  Would any other entity be allowed such a facility in a similar residential location?  There are indeed other options.  1) It can operate the facility at the capacity at which the property will allow without affecting other residents in the neighborhood.  2) The other is to move it to a location into the Town which would accommodate such an operation.  If this situation is in such dire environmental emergency in the eyes of the County Health Department that is pressuring you to make a decision for this sewage treatment plant, why has the facility not been shut down?  Would anyone else be allowed to operate under these circumstances?  The lack of Code Enforcement, the lack of any government agency to do their jobs and protect the citizens of Cortlandt is astounding.  The eagerness of those to push this proposal through against the people that pay their salaries is particularly galling.  Where are the people that are supposed to be looking out for my neighbors and myself?  Personally, I have the fullest respect for the Board.  I appreciate the time, the effort that you’ve put forth to carry out the business of this Town.  I don’t envy you one bit.  I’ve been there on a much smaller scale.  You can’t please everybody, I understand that.  This is probably going to be my last chance to say anything on this application and as you know I’ve been here the whole time, something here is very amiss.  I suspect that there are some undue influences being applied to advance this proposal.  The sounds of silence from the political leaders is deafening.  Why no politician has come out against this proposal is amazing.  No other application would get this kind of consideration.  I believe this is leaving the citizens of this Town no other choice than they ask that the Attorney General, the public integrity bureau create an investigation as to how this project is being reamed down our throats.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I’ve got to say something here.  You lose a lot of force of your argument with your innuendo and you insult the Board and then you sort of give compliments to the Board.  There is no pressure on this Board.  There is no pressure from any public official in this Town to this Board and I can speak to that personally.

Mr. Joel Benedict asked from this Town or from the County?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded or from the County.  I will tell you that I’ve had no conversations.  I don’t think anybody here has had any conversation with anybody from the County or the Town on this application as to what we should or should not do.  I also would tell you that I don’t think we’re treating this application any different than any other application that comes before this Board and to question the integrity of the Board is something that hurts your argument sir and I think that you’re making a big mistake by doing that.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated I apologize.  Please consider the rest of my very valid points.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated damage done.  Anybody else wish to comment?

Mr. Steven Basini presented himself to the Board and stated I live on Lakeview Avenue.  Obviously I’m one of the 575.  I’d like to think a little bit more logically about this.  I understand the purview of this Board is not to address a lot of the issues that were here tonight.  I’m thinking that the County is obviously is regulating this.  The County wants this to happen.  The County has said that a septic system cannot be replaced on this property due to the current regulations and standards.  I see that as no other alternative.  The only other alternative is to maybe tie into the existing pump station.  The Town can’t spend the money on that maybe that’s a conversation for another Board at another time.  The issue is this is the alternative that would work or can work and has been proven by designers and engineers.  The reputation of the people here, if you did some research on them you could see that their years of experience and reputations are impeccable in Westchester County.  I’ve heard of them before and I’ve dealt with them before.  I’m not concerned about the design of the system.  The only thing I’m really concerned about and maybe getting down to the point of maintenance and I think it is within the purview of this Board in their resolution to maybe request that the maintenance be done by an outside firm,  some sort of independent operator.  I don’t know if that’s been mentioned.
Mr. Steinmetz stated we’ve already briefed that we indicated to get a professional company much like the companies that are doing the other treatment plants here in this Town. 
Mr. Steven Basini responded if that’s already in affect than obviously the Board knows about that and so do the residents and I assume the applicant does as well.  However, I would only ask that that be put into the resolution and it seems like it’s already been addressed.  The maintenance is obviously of most importance.  I believe this is going to be the best solution out of the three that are proposed.  I support it as long as it is maintained properly by professionals. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there’s one other option which is what they are currently doing which is pumping out the septic system every day or every other day.  

Mr. Steven Basini responded it is not tenable and one slip of that and we have issues.  I think this is the best alternative as long as it’s maintained.  

Mr. Dave Simbari presented himself to the Board and stated I live 7 Flanders Lane.  I’ve been to the Yeshiva and I think that you do a great job there with the kids and I have the utmost respect for all your advisors, even you Tim, and I think the Board is in a very difficult position here but you’ve got a petition here that’s been signed by 300 taxpayers.  You’ve probably got about 100 people in here that have voiced their opposition and maybe some type of un-toward form or another but it would seem to me that imposing an environmental impact study would probably be a good compromise because I think that would allay some of the fears that people have and really justify the decision that you’ll make and I don’t really understand why you won’t do that.  Why are you so reticent to actually ask them to do an environmental impact study?  I know the State, the Department of Health, etc but these agencies are so far removed and I think that the residents need to be treated more than just as an applicant if you will.  Please consider imposing an environmental impact statement study on this project. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked and you’re speaking as?

Mr. Dave Simbari responded I’m a resident.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked just a concerned resident?

Mr. Dave Simbari asked and you’re speaking as an environmental engineer?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I’m speaking as a member of the Planning Board.  I was curious what your capacity is in making the comment.

Mr. Dave Simbari stated and I’ve been here for almost every meeting for the last two years.

Ms. Linda Mcmann presented herself to the Board and stated basically my major concern is the impact that this sewage treatment plant would have on the environment and the surrounding wetlands and community.  I really need to know, and I’m sure the community members here need to know truly what the impact is on the community and public health when the sewage treatment facility fails.  I say ‘when’ and not ‘if’ because based on the Yeshiva’s previous history of safety and health violations, they don’t have a good track record and I don’t feel confident in their ability to manage, maintain and run a sewage treatment facility.  I had brought in some pictures, the first one being my back yard, I don’t know if you can see from where you’re sitting but I have a stream running through my yard.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s your address?

Ms. Linda Mcmann responded 14 Lakeview Avenue West.  My stream goes through a neighbor’s property and feeds directly into Rose Lake.  I have children that use the stream.  There’s frogs in the stream and they catch frogs and flies.  You see I have deer in the back yard.  It’s very environmental friendly, we enjoy it.  Other pictures I have here are when it rains heavily how that stream flows say in normally two, two and half foot stream to six, seven feet.  My big concern is when the sewage treatment plant malfunctions, what is the impact on the lands, the wetlands, this overflow?  What is the seepage into this area?  What is the seepage into the school where I have a couple of pictures where Blue Mountain Middle School consistently overflows and I have pictures of the Furnace Woods School front of the school and the back of the school where the children play in water deep enough that there’s kids out there in a raft.  We need to know what is the impact of this sewage treatment plant on the environment once it malfunctions?  I feel that it is truly unconscionable for this to go through and be approved without having this study done.  I appreciate your time and hope you consider this.  

Mr. Greg Gail presented himself to the Board and stated I’m here once again.  I live on Furnace Woods Road about a quarter mile down the road from the Yeshiva.  With all due respect Mr. Bianchi I took exception as did Mr. Kennedy to your inference that somebody in this room, or one of the community members.  I have no idea. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I will repeat what I said again.  I did not accuse anybody in this room or anybody watching this on TV.  I said somebody did it.  Somebody obviously in opposition to this application that’s all I said. 

Mr. Greg Gale responded you don’t know that.  That’s why I take exception.  You don’t know that.  That’s number one.  That’s why I said with all due respect.  I don’t want to get into a shouting match about who did what or who said what. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’ve said my piece.

Mr. Greg Gale responded and so have I.  As far as the sewer treatment plant goes and the environmental impact statement.  The citizen we hear is basically pleading with you to have one.  There are a lot of open issues that we just don’t know and we just don’t understand.  I for one don’t understand how this can run past two schools.  It doesn’t make any sense to me.  It floods now, I don’t care if you add a drop of water, it’s still more water.  While, I can understand and respect the applicant’s consultants and their engineer that there’s going to be clean water that comes out, as Ms. Mcmann said before me, what happens when, not if, this does not function correctly?  We’ve seen Mr. Rutolo’s exhibits that this area floods.  There’s nothing that I see in any of the plans or presentations to assure us that this whole plant is not going to wash down stream, let alone if it stops to function.  There’s four or five or six feet of water back there on occasion and not once every ten years, once every two or three.  Any time we get a tropical storm up here that floods.  As far as the perception that the applicant is getting preferential treatment I can understand why there is that perception.  Be it true or not.  I think everybody in this room has property, has a home, I myself if I wanted to add a fourth bedroom in my septic system would not support it, I certainly wouldn’t have the right to drain the effluent onto my neighbor’s property.  I don’t understand why there is this inferred right for the applicant to quote one of their consultants “willy nilly” decide to discharge this into the environment when the people, the neighbors are saying “no we don’t want it.”  I think our objections are valid and we’ve yet to hear an explanation from anybody why this is good for the community and it’s our community that this is being drained into.  I submit to the Board and staff that not all options have been explored here.  There are, I’m sure, other ideas and other technology that can be employed.  I personally think that the Yeshiva should be required to maintain their property and have the effluent discharge onto their property just like we all have to in an environmentally safe manner in a residential zone which we are in.  If they have to cap their population at 60, so be it.  That’s not my problem.  My problem is that this effluent is not going to go into my neighborhood.  That’s what we’re upset about.  If, as I’ve said, they have to cap their population, they have to cap their population.  I have to cap my population at my house because I can’t put as many bedrooms as I necessarily want and so does everybody in this room.  I don’t understand.  It doesn’t make any sense to me why there are people here that have to abide by these laws and yet, it appears, that the Town does not want to impose the same restrictions on the Yeshiva.  I don’t understand that and neither does anybody here.  You guys have a perception problem, be it true or not, you have a perception problem.  As far as the maintenance of this facility if we go into a special use permit which I think would be a reasonable path for us to take if this is approved, which I hope it is not, based on the Yeshiva’s past history of poor performance and poor adherence to the regulations that are imposed on everybody else that this should be renewable at no more than one year, at least for the first five years to make sure that this facility and we’re not just talking about the sewer treatment plant we’re also talking about another building in this application.  To make sure this is maintained correctly.  So far we have seen no proof that they were going to adhere to it.  I’ve been talking to various members of staff and I understand that they would like a 25 year renewable special permit.  That is patently absurd and I would strongly object to that.  With all due respect Mr. Kessler you said we’re past the density issue, I respectfully object to some degree because I think that we do have to deal with the density because of the effluent that’s going to be generated and the use of the property.  They can have the sewer treatment plant and they can cap the water usage which I believe is the way they monitor the flow of the sewer treatment plant but there’s nothing from stopping them from having 15 outhouses all over the place or there’s nothing to stop them from having an alternative holiday accommodations.  Last meeting, Mr. Benedict was rather forceful and was able to secure a commitment to 300 population in total.  I have documentation that shows that the Yeshiva has previously offered to cap their student population at 200.  They’re “voluntary” cap of 225 to me does not look to be any deal but he also said that it’s 300 for the holidays.  I’ve got to tell you, I live on Furnace Woods Road right down the road from the Yeshiva and on holidays at quarter to 12 on a Friday night there are tour buses that come past my house, full, on the way to the Yeshiva.  Now, these people denied it in prior hearings.  I can tell you it happens.  It’s there.  If they’re going to have 200 or 225 people I can’t see how they’re going to cap their population at 300.  In the past, the Town has not really required a strict adherence to the population.  My question is what type of accommodations is the Town going to make to strictly enforce it this time around?  How are we, as a citizenry, going to feel comfortable that the Town is going to monitor the population?  I’ve yet to hear that.  I don’t understand it.  I don’t think anybody in this room understands it.  Again, there’s a perception problem.  Nobody’s explained that to me.  As far as the maintenance of this sewage facility I understand that the Town feels it is the responsibility of the County to maintain it.  Who’s going to look at the County?  If you’re an auditor, if you have a client and you have an auditor you have auditors of the auditors.  Who’s going to make sure the County’s doing their job?  Does the Town have the facility to do that?  I don’t think you have a sewage department.  I don’t think you have anybody qualified on staff so my question is are we, the taxpayers, going to be forced to incur more tax expenditure to make sure that this is watched over?  I don’t know.  That’s pretty much all I have to say at this stage with the exception of I implore you folks not to close the public hearing tonight.  There are many people that are just coming back from vacation.  The school Board has just been made aware of this at the Hendrick Hudson District.  They have yet be able to formulate an opinion.  I think that there other people that need to be heard from and I understand you folks are in a very difficult position.  The populace doesn’t want it yet we have an application in front of you that you need to make a decision on.  Any decision in haste is usually wrong.  I would implore you to please defer at least one more month and to please, we’re begging you get an environmental impact statement so we all can understand what’s going on.
Mr. Robert Mcmann presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 14 Lakeview Avenue West.  I was one of the people I helped circulate the petition.  I came back from vacation about mid-August when I found out about this sewage treatment plant.  I like most people, were not here in July, was not here at the beginning of August.  I was not able to make the last two meetings.  In circulating this petition there is a tremendous amount of concern within the community.  People are very concerned about the sewage treatment plant.  Most people were unaware of this application because, again, most people are away during the summer months.  They’re not around to find out about this.  There are two areas that they are mostly concerned with.  The first is the poor maintenance and the history that the Yeshiva has with maintaining their facilities.  The buildings, they let run down, I’m aware that there are numerous fire violations.  Given this, how can they be expected to maintain a sewage treatment plant?  Also, another question, why did the current septic system fail?  Was it lack of maintenance on their part?  And, if it was why should it be our problem, the community’s problem to allow them to build a sewage treatment plant?  The second thing is why should we waive an environmental impact study?  I think any other facility that would build something of this proportion would be required to have a final environmental impact statement.  I think it really should be required.  Again, I also would like to reiterate I think that the Board should keep the public hearing open for another month.  A lot of people are still unaware of it.  There’s a lot of opposition in the Town and I think it would be in the Town’s best interest to do that.  
Ms. Katrina Kuehler presented herself to the Board and stated 4 Galloway Lane.  I have a relatively simple question and I apologize if this was discussed earlier.  My question is those numbers that we were given in the earlier presentation of the amount of discharge in the environment, are they based on the maximum capacity of this treatment plant or on this number 300 students?  This is my first question and second question: what is the maximum capacity of this sewage treatment plant?  In other words, how many students theoretically can they maintain in this facility with other upgrades if they decide later to apply for expanding the facility again.  Because, my concern is that if they already have in place this treatment plant that is of high capacity then they will not have to come in front of this Board for further expansion.  That’s basically the two questions that I have.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you want to answer those questions?

Ms. Katrina Kuehler asked first is the numbers were based on the actual maximum capacity or as this 300 theoretical number of students that we’re talking about?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded the flow to the plant is based upon the numbers that the Yeshiva has agreed to as their maximum capacity of students, apartments, guest houses, etc.  I’m sorry I don’t have the report in front of me.  It’s the number that’s in the report that we have previously provided to you.  It’s 300 individuals based on students, apartments, faculty who come to live on premises and faculty who live off premises.
Ms. Katrina Kuehler asked and the second part of this question what is the actual maximum capacity not based on the maximum amount of students there are agreed on today, but if five years down the road you decide that you want to have 500 students instead, will you be able to do this without upgrading this sewage system that you’re building?  What is the actual capacity of this plant that will allow you to increase the amount of students without going in front of the Board?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’ll do my best to try to answer the question.  My client has agreed to a maximum capacity of 225 students, that’s well documented. That’s been offered up as part of this application that would be a clear and decisive condition of any resolution.

Mr. John Klarl interrupted in a special permit.

Mr. David Steinmetz continued in addition, the Town did its own analysis of the maximum physical capacity of occupancy on site and the building inspector concluded that the maximum residential occupancy is well in excess of the 225 students and that’s why the cap that we have agreed to is unquestionably a voluntary restraint and restriction on what could be there.  In the event that the occupancy of the facility were ever desired to be increased there would be several things that would have to happen: 1) there would have to be an application to modify the cap in the special permit resolution that would require coming back here.  2) It would require a review by the County Health Department and the DEC to determine whether the SPDES permit that hypothetically would have been issued requires amendment as well.  This facility is being capped, the treatment plant at 23,500 gallons maximum capacity.  That maximum capacity I mumbled from the background is based upon a DEC bluebook.  I’ve come to learn far more about treatment plants than I ever wish to know.  The DEC bluebook takes into account the number of individuals on site and analyzes water consumption and as Louise has explained to us all in the first public hearing, grosses that number up to create a buffer or conservative estimate.  We are being asked to actually build the plant at a larger physical capacity than we need.  Our engineers tell us that we’re actually going to be generating approximately, Mr. Chairman you did the math quicker than all of us based upon the water consumption, somewhere in the neighborhood of 13 to 16,000 gallons per day of maximum water flow on site.  That’s not a number that just came out of thin air.  That’s based upon an empirical analysis of water usage that the Town has been monitoring.  That’s the number and in order to take that number of people using, drinking and excreting that water.  You then have to plug that number into the DEC bluebook and the engineers come up with a number that we have to build the plant at.  Maybe we’d save money if we built the 16,000 gallon per day plant but DEC is going to require for this number of individuals consuming this much water that’s what we’re going to have to do. That’s how it’s arrived at.  That’s what the numbers are.  That’s what they’ll be in the permit just like every other permit it’s subject to governmental regulation and enforcement.  We look forward to receiving a modified special permit that will address these conditions openly.  We look forward to continuing to cooperate with the Town.  I just want to state that my client feels it’s incumbent upon me to indicate that any pre-existing issues that predominated on site in terms of a fire code violation have been rectified.  Any issues regarding an electrical concern have been rectified.  The thing that is most troubling is that our client and our team have spent now four years simply trying to fix the place up.  Anyone that’s got a physical or esthetic concern, if you’d look at what KGD did, they did a wonderful design.  Let the Yeshiva finally spend the money and the time fix their facility up because they have 225 wonderful young men whom they want to have live there and educate there and co-exist with the community as peacefully as they have, literally, for 25 years.  It’s just when we came and knocked on the door of the Town and said “let us fix the place up,” that we’ve become bogged down and we were very mindful of the neighbor’s concerns and we’re very mindful, not just of the neighbor’s concerns but of things that have been disseminated.  Mr. Bianchi I don’t need to make this part of the record but there was more than the biohazard sign that you saw.  I know that you were biting your lip on that but there’s some attribution in that above-and-beyond the signage.  Let’s put that aside and let’s try and get this thing resolved.  Mr. Chairman, with all due respect we’ve sat patiently for three sessions of the public hearing.  Nothing new has been raised this evening.  We understand the concerns of the neighbors.  We understand the generalized concerns and fears.  The law is extraordinarily clear.  Mr. Klarl can direct you to retail property’s trust, PMS Ventures if for a three leading case of the New York State Court of Appeals that all stand for the proposition that in the face of generalized community opposition that is not sufficient to warrant an environmental impact statement.  This matter is ripe and ready to move forward with an empirical review from DOH, DEC and the Engineering Department.
Ms. Katrina Kuehler responded I thank you very much for your answer and I understand now what’s going on.  These numbers were given to us based on the occupancy of 300 students.  

Mr. Steven Kessler interrupted 225 students plus staff.

Ms. Katrina Kuehler continued but we have visitors and there’s sometimes a significant amount of visitors there.  
Mr. Steven Kessler stated population 300.

Ms. Katrina Kuehler responded occupancy but not the capacity of that plant which can be bigger than we’re talking about so I just wanted to make a point so that when we listen to those numbers that were given to us they may be slightly different based on how we counted that and who’s looking into those numbers.  Since this is going to be the end of it I just wanted to say that it’s my personal statement that I was coming here several times in the beginning and I was sympathetic to your cause because I thought this is a school that has the right to exist and they have to do everything they have to do to keep it safe and maintain it and run their school.  I stopped coming here because I thought the public sewage everything looks good and then suddenly this new development with the sewage treatment plant that really alerted me and made me come here.  I think this is a completely new development.  It’s not the old case we’re talking about four years of hearings.  This is a new hearing here and I don’t think it should be closed today because not enough people were alerted to this.  A lot of people, just like myself, think that this the old stuff, we already heard it and everything is done.  No, this is a completely new development and we shouldn’t close it tonight.

Mr. Andrew Cinque presented himself to the Board and stated 34 Ridge Road, Cortlandt Manor.  I just have to mention something.  You said that the 200 something students want to peacefully co-exist, believe it or not, I’m going to bring up something that hasn’t been brought up yet if you can believe that over the past two hours.  Something I mentioned last year that I was here.  If those 200 something students want to co-exist somebody needs to tell them to stop walking in groups of four or five, eight people at a time through the roads of Maple and the surrounding area there’s a tragic thing is going to happen one day.  I don’t need my sixteen year-old daughter coming telling me “dad, I almost hit one of those guys today.”  That has to stop and I brought it up last year and I thought it was going to be addressed.  I thought they agreed that they were going to do something about that.  They need the exercise.  There are a lot of places they can go to get exercise.  They need to stop walking in groups down Maple before something happens.  That’s the main thing that I wanted to say.  I agree with everything that everybody else brought up.

Mr. Preston Trusler presented himself to the Board and stated I’m at 1 Hillview Court in Furnace Woods.  Hello, it’s nice to be back again.  I solicited this letter from Dr. McCann about the septic plant at the schools and I’m sorry for the confusion that it has caused.  What I was told verbally over the phone was that the tanks in question are underground and they only kick in when there is a flood and the tanks overflow.  There is no surface discharge.  Just to put this matter to bed once and for all I’m getting another letter that says exactly what I was told.  Most of the bases have been covered.  The only question that I have is that I don’t understand why I have to be here tonight.  I don’t understand why these people who are in opposition are here tonight because just three years ago your panel denied an application for a sewage treatment plant going into the same waterway because it dumped water that went by the school.  So, why are we considering a plant now if a plant was already denied a permit for construction? 

Mr. Ivan Kline responded if that’s a genuine question I recall there being around nine things that were cited due for the denial of the application you have in mind.  To state that as the basis is not an accurate statement of what this Board did.

Mr. Preston Trusler continued Mr. Kline this plant in question is a considerably larger plant than the plant that was denied three years ago.  

Mr. Ivan Kline responded we denied an application for a subdivision.  We didn’t deny an application for a plant.  If you go back and read the resolution, I obviously don’t have it with me…

Mr. John Klarl stated there were four major reasons I recall and the subdivision talked about was of the wetlands, steep slope, length of road, sewage treatment plant.

Mr. Ivan Kline continued and storm water discharge issues as well.

Mr. Preston Trusler continued I believe the lynch pin in it was the sewage treatment plant and that it was going to be threatening the school grounds.

Mr. John Klarl stated steep slope, the wetlands, and the length of road were prime factors.

Mr. Preston Trusler stated we’ve been friends for four years and to push this through in three months I think is a little rash.  It was done over the summer when people were away.  I was away for a month and I know that there are scores of people that have no idea what is going on with this so perhaps if you could keep this hearing open for another month, get an environmental impact study done by an independent group and get the answer to that question and maybe we can put this to bed in October.  Thank you for your time and thank you for your patience.
Mr. Liam Farber presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 310 Lafayette Avenue.  A couple of things from listening to this tonight I keep hearing the State and the County are really the ones that have to be worried about the environmental issues.  It’s their purveyance.  That’s before the Department of Environmental Protection.  This is what I keep hearing.  
Mr. Tim Miller stated the State DEC and the County has jurisdiction over the discharge from the treatment plant, the construction of the treatment plant, the monitoring of the treatment plant and the determination for SEQRA all parties are responsible for including this Board.  
Mr. Liam Farber asked you have a request into that permit why before the information comes back on that are we rushing to make a decision here?  That’s number one.  

Mr. David Steinmetz responded just so everybody’s clear, I said this the last time.  Anyone that’s got a question Mr. Klarl, please confirm it.  We cannot get DEC and DOH to take final action until this Board closes out the SEQRA process. That is precisely the way the procedure works.  You are the lead agency.  There are no significant adverse environmental impacts that have been identified before this Board.  The only empirical data and empirical studies that have been submitted have been submitted by the applicant.  This Board needs to take action so that the DEC can then move forward.  We’ve got an application pending before Region 3.  It’s got a file number.  It’s been fully submitted.  They are awaiting your Board.

Mr. John Klarl stated there has to be a SEQRA determination before you move on with the SPDES permit and the SEQRA determination has to be from the lead agency.  They can’t go forward with the SPDES permit until the lead agent makes the SEQRA determination.

Mr. Liam Farber asked but as I pointed out, I wasn’t here last time because being the summer when this is getting kind of, in my opinion, rushed through a lot of people don’t know about it and a lot of people haven’t heard about it.  I’m not really quite happy with that attitude with let’s do this when people don’t know about it.  The other thing that I want to comment on is it seems like you did a test of water.  How many locations did you test and how often did you test it over what period of time?  If, as I heard and maybe I heard wrong thank you for correcting me, if as I heard you did one test, that’s bad science.  Did you do it after it rained so that it’s a little bit cleaner?  Did you do it in a drought when it’s more condensed?  I’d like to understand.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I think the gentleman’s correct that is bad science and we didn’t want to do the test.  The Planning Board, Ms. Todd, requested that we do it.  We objected to it because it is bad science.  Nonetheless, because the applicant has been extending information all the answers that it could to this Board in an empirical fashion, we went out and we collected a stream sample.  Why is it bad science?  Because, this treatment plant is being designed to intermittent stream standards.  This treatment plant is being designed to the highest standards of effluent discharge so that the discharge from the plant being the only discharge in the stream at certain dry times of the year will be able to support aquatic life.  We went out to take a test just to see because we were encouraged by the Board.  We did it once and we did it three weeks ago.  There was flow in the stream and we did it the only place where we could collect a sample downstream at a public location which was at Maple Avenue and Furnace Dock Road.  We only did it for information sake.  We were pleased to find that in fact the effluent from the treatment plant will improve the water quality of the stream and I wouldn’t suggest that anybody use that data for anything.  But, we did provide it to you because you asked.  

Mr. Liam Farber stated it would have been nice if you had mentioned that when you submitted it.

Mr. Tim Miller responded the information is on the Internet.  The Planning Board’s meetings are posted, there’s a video there.  There’s an article in the North County News every month about these meetings and about these proceedings.
Mr. Liam Farber responded I’m not talking about that.  I’m talking about you presented facts today that we’ve both just agreed is bad science.  That’s kind of not good.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I stated the reasons why it’s bad science.
Mr. Liam Farber responded I’m not going to get into an argument.  These are my opinions.  To me, I think answers should be had before anything is rushed into.  People need to know about this.  North County News is not the New York Times.  Not everybody reads it.  I don’t read it.  In terms of you guys good neighbors.  I’ve lived here for a couple of years, I’ve never had any issue with any of your young men.  Do some of them walk three or four across, yes, they’re teenagers they don’t always think.  That’s not the key issue.  The key issue here though and where people keep talking about environmental studies and you guys might not want to hear it and it might be a headache but they have concerns because it’s health of children at schools and you know what that is a key concern to people in this area.  It’s always going to be.  If you think people shouldn’t be concerned about their children without seeing what the effects are going to be, you’ve got to be kidding.  I would just like to see all those stats and know that everything is good before we go ahead.

Ms. Sandy Welkis presented herself to the Board and stated I live at 10 Peter A Beet Drive.  I just heard something that didn’t make sense to me and I would like it to be clarified.  If we close these proceedings does that mean we acquiesce to the application?  When you close the proceedings because they seem to have said that they need this closed in order to go further with the other departments.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we can’t vote until we close the public hearings.  They’d like to see us close the public hearing because the Board has a certain length of time within which to render an opinion, 62 days.  Once I close the public hearing, or once the Board closes the public hearing, we have to make a decision one way or the other within 62 days whether to approve or deny the application. 

Ms. Sandy Welkis asked if you deny the application what can be done to override you?  Do they have the authority to get someone to override?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded the courts.  They would have to go to court and bring an Article 78 proceedings against the Board.

Ms. Sandy Welkis stated I agreed with a lot that has been said however, I think that the proceedings should be covered in the local paper, not the County News which is a once a week paper that comes out.  I think that more people would be aware of what’s going on if it appeared in our local paper, which is a daily paper which many people in the Town read.  I would like to have it disseminated there instead of the County News which is not a popular paper according to our local paper.  Are you going to answer our questions?  I heard a lot of questions asked.  I have practically not heard one answer except when it comes to somebody defending what they’re proposing. 
Mr. Steven Kessler responded the intent here is for us to take information in from the public and for us to then deliberate based upon that information.  Quite honestly, let’s get to the threshold issue here.  The threshold issue here is and forgetting whether we open or close or keep open the public hearing, is has there been presented enough information here that we believe that there is an adverse, environmental impact that we will require and environmental impact statement?  That’s really the threshold question.  That’s what I’ve heard continuously all night long here.  We have not made that determination yet by the way.  We have not decided and that’s why everybody keeps bringing it up.  We have not decided regarding an environmental impact statement.  We have not made the SEQRA determination yet. 

Ms. Sandy Welkis asked what would help you to decide to do it?  

Mr. Steven Kessler responded what helps us do that obviously is the input from the public, which is seriously very helpful to us, it’s the information that the applicant has provided through themselves and through their consultants and also the staff. The staff of the Town, employees of the Town are a very important input to this Board as well and that’s why they’re here because they spend more time reviewing the applications quite honestly than we do.  Their input and their determination is very important to us as well.  Collectively, that’s how we make a decision.

Ms. Sandy Welkis asked and will any of our questions besides the impact question be answered?  Are you able to answer the people’s questions openly or must you discuss it amongst yourselves?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we would discuss them openly.  If there are questions that you asked that we don’t know the answer to that’s why we ask the applicant to get up and answer the questions as they’ve done.  

Ms. Sandy Welkis asked so you have the answers to all…

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think we have a lot of the answers to things and things that you bring to our attention, as other speakers have mentioned, are things that we would consider putting in a resolution should we move to approve this.  In terms of things like monitoring, in terms of the term of the special permit, those are all things we have not rendered an opinion on yet, but we’re listening.  We hear the concerns about those issues and clearly those will be things that will be included in any resolution should it get that far. 
Ms. Sandy Welkis stated I have been to many of the meetings and Ms. Taylor backed me up one time having to do with the applicant’s not adhering to their – in previous years, not the four years that you have come on and forced them to do the clean-up and everything else, they have not been very good about doing it before and we had asked for some money to be put away in escrow to ensure that these things be taken care of and the plant and what happens if the plant overflows?  Who cleans it up?  We want to have a substantial, not $25,000 that’s a spit in the bucket when they’ve spent so much money already.  I think it should be a much more substantial amount for quite a long time because they are not able to do this on their own and they won’t unless they have money which is at stake. 

Mr. Steven Kessler responded and rather than us picking a number we rely on staff to give us a number and they would include that in a resolution because they’re really closer to it and they know what the potential problems can be and what the potential cost of fixing those problems may be.  We rely on staff to tell us what those escrow or bond amounts need to be in anything we approve.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think people are misinterpreting why I said $25,000 it sort of came off the top of our heads because at that point we were talking about what happens if the plant should suddenly malfunction and my thought was: if you need to get somebody in here right away, and I think $25,000 would get somebody in here that day to do something.  It’s not that this would be the be all and end all of what would be needed.  It would be an emergency measure that there’s money there that somebody can come in, they can hire somebody or the Town can hire somebody to come in and say “come in here and work on clearing this up or shutting it down for today and then we will work on fixing the problem.”  But, it wasn’t say that $25,000 because I think we all know that’s not going to solve the problem.  No, but that’s an immediate stock get measure that if you had less you probably couldn’t do it.  If you had at least that…

Mr. John Klarl stated I think Loretta you mentioned $25,000 in connection with a violation escrow.  That’s when it first came up.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded what I’m saying is if we need to stop something or fix something immediately what I’m saying is that’s enough money that you could call up somebody and say “we have this situation, come in here today and deal with it.”

Mr. John Klarl stated I think your $25,000 came up talking about violations not even about performance and maintenance securities which is the larger numbers that we deal with.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded if something should happen that’s where…

Mr. John Klarl stated we do that in terms of performance and maintenance securities.

Mr. John Bernard,  David if you could have your sewage treatment expert answer right now that question as to exactly what happens if the plant shuts down specifically?
Ms. Louise Doyle responded to address the issue of an emergency shut down to be honest, in my 20 some odd years with the Health Department I was never in a situation where a sewage treatment plant had to shut down and could not process any sewage, but in the worst of all situations if the treatment processes were to fail you would get a hauler out there and pump out the septic tanks.
Mr. John Bernard stated if you could stop right there.  I think people don’t understand sewage plants at all.  If the sewage plant stops functioning entirely, the sewage plant isn’t just a big pipe that’s it’s constantly dumping things out.  It’s comprised of big tanks and so when it stops functioning it also stops sending any effluent out and everything stays in the tanks.  You call a pumping facility who comes out and pumps it out.  In other words, when it fails, it’s not going to overflow the plants contents into the environment.  

Ms. Louise Doyle responded no, it’s similar to with a residential septic.  If you’re having problems with your septic system and you see that your fields cannot absorb in it, you have a hauler comes out and empties out your septic tanks before the sewage gets into the plant just like they’re doing now when they noticed that the fields are getting saturated, they call a hauler, he pumps out the tanks before the sewage surfaces.

Mr. John Bernard stated I just wanted to clarify that and I hope that answers your question that in a catastrophic failure everything’s still contained.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated and as far as the dollar amounts it would be significantly less than the $25,000.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s another issue.

Ms. Sandy Welkis stated in that case the $25,000 would be more than sufficient but I think that we need some sort of other type of bond, as you said, or monies put away in case other things do go wrong.  I would also like to know if it does fail are people who would pump it out but any damage that was caused by it, who pays for that if it goes over or around in a map?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if there’s an environmental violation whoever has the environmental enforcement authority has the right to go out and do that.
Ms. Sandy Welkis asked but who pays for it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m really not certain what the question is Mr. Chairman I don’t think I can really answer that.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re coming up on the two-hour mark on this public hearing so can we quickly hear the rest of the comments?
Mr. Anthony Santelli presented himself to the Board and stated I live on 17 Peter A Beet Drive.  I just have a couple of questions and maybe they were already addressed, I stepped out for a couple of minutes.  Who is paying for the on-going maintenance?  The facility itself I believe you’re paying for it, is that how it works?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Mr. Anthony Santelli asked if it’s a private facility and everything is going to be paid for from a private standpoint.  That was my question.

Mr. Anthony Cianci presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 19 Galloway Lane.  Mr. Chairman, members of the Board I’m sitting here and I’ve attended several meetings and it seems to me that this really is a no-brainer.  You have a system here that’s failing.  You have a community that has half-acre lots.  Don’t you think it’s time where we should start thinking about dumping this stuff into a sewer?  Maybe someone else should step in and say “hey, let’s create some system here where we all can work together,” rather than saying let these guys build a plant.  Doesn’t it make sense?  We’re on half-acre lots.  These systems are failing.  They’re dumping into our waterways right now.  Rather than accommodate these guys let’s think of the whole picture of us as a community.  I know it’s going to be a cost to us.  This is inevitable.  Our families down the road are going to pay this price one way or another.  You guys keep procrastinating here and accommodating these guys.  I think the Town of Cortlandt has an obligation to think beyond this situation and accommodate the people in the area.

Mr. Greg Gale stated the first thing I wanted to address was I wanted to thank Ms. Taylor for clarifying her remarks.  The perception was that before there was a $25,000 penalty that you were putting forward and I’m glad to hear that that is not what you were doing, a cap so to speak.  As Mr. Rutolo said before, there is a tremendous amount of damage that is possible here.  The properties at risk around this facility and I hear about it if there’s a catastrophic failure, if the plant shuts down, that’s not my concern.  Look at those flood pictures.  My concern if this whole thing gets washed away.  I haven’t heard anybody talk about that.  What happens when it does or if it does?  The other question I have, and I brought it up once before but because I have another audience I’m going to bring it up again: this thing should be put into a building.  It shouldn’t be outside.  It should be in a contained in a building if it’s at all approved.  This is in a residential area and I really think that’s it’s really close to the road and it’s close to a property line.  This is something that I think an environmental impact statement would address. We’ve all heard different ideas and different opinions.  I really think that it would be a good idea to have somebody come in, an independent consultant take a look at this without any pre-ordained ideas and just give an opinion.  I think you’ve put a lot of stuff behind you.  That’s all I have for tonight.  I hope to see you next month.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any comments from the Board at this point?  

Mr. Robert Foley asked in case I missed it during this so-called long course of review, other than the applicant’s submission which have all been very good, do we have any other empirical data or submissions that point out to us any deleterious impacts of any discharge into the intermittent stream and any other subsequent water courses, other than what the applicant’s consultants are saying?  Have we?  Have I missed something?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we have some of the studies environmental reports.  There’ll be other environmental reports that will be required by both the County and the State and obviously that information can be shared and should be shared with the Town.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated has the Planning Board seen all of these?   I don’t know what we’re going to vote on here but I’d like to see the public hearing kept open to look at this idea if it’s necessary to have an FEIS.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated my own view is that we’ve had three months of the hearings.  The comments tonight, essentially I believe repeat the comments from last month all be it just by more people this time.  I think the issues are pretty clear.  We know what they are.  I think we have before us the information we’re going to have before us.  We haven’t made a SEQRA determination yet.  My preference would be to close the public hearing and bring this back under ‘old business’ and discuss as a Board at the next meeting how to go forward.

Mr. John Bernard stated I agree with Mr. Kline.  We’ve looked at this application very studiously and I agree that we should move forward.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m somewhat on the fence even though that I stated at the beginning that I’d like to see the public hearing closed.  There’s some valid points that were made certainly.  With all due respect at those that tried to answer I think that they did the best they could but I think that this lingering question about why don’t we have an EIS may deserve a better answer.  Whether it does or not I’m not saying it does and I’m not saying it doesn’t but I think there’s a lot of misunderstanding and maybe lack of knowledge.  That’s not a criticism that’s just the way it is.  Unless you deal with these things all the time you may not understand them.  That we possibly owe a better explanation as to whether or not we need to provide a determination on SEQRA that would result into an EIS.  Considering the comments, my only concern though, however if we have another public meeting is that we’re going to have another two-hour session of repeated comments and that’s something I don’t want to see.  I think every meeting should reflect only the subject and not repeat comments that are being made at the previous meetings.  Given that and given that we tried to restrain those comments and just discuss the new subjects at hand, I would agree to keeping the meeting open.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I agree a lot with what Tom has said although I do think that keeping the hearing open for another round of this is probably not as productive as we would want it to be unless we had something new to look at in the interim.  Unless we are going to get some of the feedback from the State before or have somebody come in and take a look at deleterious effects adverse impacts, I don’t know what would be the purpose of holding it open unless we could actually do that.  I do want to say even as I say that normally when we do an EIS it’s a very comprehensive kind of document.  I don’t know that we, given what the concerns have been all this time, that we would want to go there, cover that expanse of amount of materials.  Maybe we would probably limit the focus to the effects on the stream, the flooding and that kind of thing and sort of keep it tight so we can stay focused here and get the best out of that report that we can get in a short period of time.  If someone could come in and look at these specific kinds of concerns as opposed to other kinds of things.  That might be helpful and it might be something that could be done in a fairly short time.  Something tells me that if we keep it open and we go for even a limited EIS we could be here not only in October, but in November.  It’s quite likely.  In the meantime, we still have that problem at the Yeshiva that the Department of Health has cautioned us we have to deal with.  All things considered, as I’ve said, I would like to keep the hearings open but only if it means that we’re going to really be looking at something different next time. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if I could just respond to what Tom’s said, I don’t think we’ve ever used and I don’t think we’re supposed to use public hearings to decide whether to require an environmental impact statement.  I think we have to make that determination based upon what has been submitted to us and I would think makes more sense is to close the hearing because then the comments from the public we know what they are to get something from Council reminding us of what the standard is for environmental impact statement and discuss it our next meeting whether we think the thresholds have been met to require one.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated here’s what I’m thinking, like I’ve said, the EIS is normally a very thick, comprehensive document.  Maybe we don’t really need the EIS in a traditional sense if the community would agree that we could limit that in scope so that we’re not really talking about full-blown EIS but something that would target the specific concerns that you have than I think that’s doable within the time frame we’re setting.  If you want a full-blown EIS that will take many, many months I think all we’re doing is delaying.  Something’s going to have to happen here.  You can’t imagine how sensitive we are to the situation with all of you but this is a Board that has to take a look at your concerns and take a look at what we’re charged to do with respect to this specific application.  It is very difficult.  I really am very sympathetic to your concerns but at the same time, as a Board, we have to start doing something to move this process forward.  We cannot sit here month after month after month and just keep coming up the same pretty much areas that are repeatedly voiced here every single month.  We all know that.  We know that we need to find something that we can target and deal with so we can move the process forward.  We’re sort of stymied here.  We do hear what you’re saying and we are sympathetic, believe me but we have to move forward.  We really do.  We can’t just sit here every month and rehash these things and that’s why I’m saying if we can look at a way to getting to some information that is really of concern to you and have somebody come out and maybe do some kind of a study, it won’t be a full-blown EIS, but it would target the specific things that we have noted time and again that you’re concerned about.  If you could agree to that maybe we can move this forward and you would have your answers and we could have answers that will help us decide yay or nay.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated just to throw my two cents in here.  Our purpose here is to listen to everybody and to try and determine, to move forward on the application and decide if there are adverse environmental impacts that warrant further study.  People have denigrated the Department of Health and the State regulatory agencies here but ultimately they’re responsible for this.  We’re here to decide whether a building should be rebuilt and refurbished and whether they can build a sewage treatment plant.  The placement and the building of that plant is our purview and then it’s up to the State and the County to decide whether they can operate that plant.  They have standards.  They have standards for intermittent streams.  They are very high standards and the applicant will have to adhere to those standards.  I don’t know if there is anything more we need to learn here on this Board as to adverse environmental impacts.  I know you don’t want to hear that but I’m sitting here and ultimately there are other regulatory bodies that supersede us and have responsibility for this and it is not our job to second guess them.  That’s not what we do here.  They’re going to monitor it.  We can put in place whatever conditions we want to ensure that we look over their shoulders and monitor it as well and we can make sure that this applicant comes back in a reasonable period of time to prove that they continue to be good neighbors, they don’t have any violations, they have been maintaining the plant as they’re supposed to maintain that plant and that I think it should be the discussion of the Board as to what conditions should be put into this to move this thing forward and alleviate the problem that they have there in terms of the septic system that has failed and hopefully put in place a better solution.  I know it’s not popular, believe me I can hear people, I can hear your thoughts.  Honestly, as I sit here and I’ve been doing this I hate to say 20 years, I don’t know what else there is for us to learn here that’s going to influence our decision or make me change my mind that we need some further studies to say that there are adverse environmental impacts.  I just don’t see it.  That’s one person’s opinion. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated your phrase was “placement and location is our purview.”  You’ve been through the process.  We’ve been going through this 90 to 120 days.  I said it to you on day one; you’ve gone full circle and we’re right back to that same place.  The issue for you is placement/location.  The issue of what’s coming out the plant is someone else.  With all due respect to the public and I absolutely understand their concerns and I’m not surprised that they’re here.  There are at least a dozen communities where I sit on the other side of the dais as Special Land Use and Environmental Council and I watch the comments coming from the other direction.  I don’t envy what your Board has been through but with all due respect, in most communities on a technical issue that’s within the jurisdiction and the control of another agency, they just wouldn’t just allow the hearing to go where it has.  You have because you have been so willing to be open with your community, my client may not like that, our team may not like that, I applaud you for your willingness to try to conduct as open and thorough a process but I know I said it at the end of the first hearing and I got reprimanded by the Chairman and then I know I said it at the second session of the hearing and I got reprimanded by the Chairman.  Every time I’ve said the same thing.  You’re hearing the identical issues.  They’re legitimate questions.  They’re questions that your Board is not going to be able to answer with any degree of precision.  They’re questions that are going to be answered only by governmental agencies with authority.  Folks, we’re banging our heads against the wall.  I’m asking you, on behalf of my client, you’ve been through this now for three sessions on a fairly limited application to close the public hearing.  You don’t have to make a SEQRA determination tonight.  I look forward to coming back next month and discussing with you precisely why there’s no basis need or desire on your part as the lead agency to have an environmental impact statement done because the technical data is going to be reviewed, as Ed told us on day one, by Health and by DEC.  Let’s come back next month and discuss SEQRA more completely and let’s discuss the conditions because where your authority extends is the special permit conditions to make sure that my client abides by everything that you, DEC and the Health Department mandate.  That’s what we should really be spending our time doing because that’s where this is inevitably heading as Ms. Taylor said in light of the fact that the Health Department told my client before we filed this application “you can’t do the septic system anymore Yeshiva.  You’ve got to pursue the on-site treatment plant.”  I want to state for the record for the people who haven’t been here for all the other sessions the treatment plant will cost my client somewhere between $300,000 and a half a million dollars more than the sewer connection they were seeking to do on day one four years ago.  We’ve been down the road. This is not an issue of money.  This is an issue of expense and additional money.  We want to deal with it.  We want to get to the point where we can fix the place up and allow these students to have a functioning sanitary system.  Close the hearing.  We’re going around in circles.  I don’t want to waste your time.  We’ve got a lot more people here and unfortunately, I’m not going anywhere either.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just one other comment, if we were to close the hearing I’d like to stress that we should allow for extensive Board discussion on this and to the extent that even if we have to have another meeting on it.  It may be necessary to do it to that degree so that we fairly evaluate all the information that we have now and anything else that’s going to be presented to us.  Reach a decision that could be well documented and justified on SEQRA.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we share that concern as well. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked if we need more than 62 days?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded next month we’ll see where we are and Mr. Chairman there has never been an application where you and I have had an argument when we got to a point where you were asking for more than 62 days and we refused to give it.  I can’t think of one time that that’s happened.  Am I telling you today that I think you cannot do it in 62 days? No, because you’ve got the information.  Mr. Bianchi you’ve had the environmental and the engineering reports.  Can spend the next 30 days between now and the October meeting.  Reach out to DEC.  reach out to DOH.  Go find out if what Louise, Dan, Tim, myself find out if everything we’ve told you is legitimate, accurate.  There’s been, we’ve heard it Loretta asked the question, there’s been no empirical data submitted by anyone or any other governmental agency contravening what we’ve said.  If there is, tell us about it we’ll deal with it, we’ll respond.  It hasn’t happened.  It’s time to close the public hearing and with all due respect under SEQRA you have no basis to pause deck this.  There’s nothing in the record.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated my point is we need to have time whether this stays opened or closed, it doesn’t matter, we need to have time to discuss this amongst ourselves.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely.  If you need to have a special meeting to have a more in-depth discussion, we’re happy to do it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that was my question.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’ve never declined that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I asked the question about - 15 minutes ago - other than the applicant’s submissions, and Mr. Steinmetz has brought it up again, has the DEC or anyone else made any comment on their submissions other than we know the County DOH has said that a plant is required? 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded not that I’m aware of, and again there will be environmental reports, as I mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the County and the State which we should look at and evaluate.  In fact, our input is critical to that process.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I still would like to keep the hearing open.  I respect and understand the comments from my fellow members and what Tom just said if it does close then maybe perhaps besides what he’s saying maybe the Chair should entertain - to keep the public included points of information at any other meeting.  I’ve learned some new stuff tonight.  They’re not all identical issues I don’t think Mr. Steinmetz.  The public doesn’t appear to have a lawyer or a consulting engineer that I can see but I was very impressed by that chart behind the pictures.  On the discharge I did read Mr. Miller’s memo about the two garden hoses and it was very impressive when we first heard it but if you start to pick it apart like that chart does you go from the 23,000 gallons of discharge per day to up to 8.3 million gallons per year.  I’m very familiar with the water courses and the stream networks in the area going back to before I was on this Board.  I spent a lot of time in the Furnace Dock and Furnace Woods area in relation to another issue and I know what can happen after major rainfalls and I just wonder if we’ve really – a lot of materials have come in but I’m concerned whether we’re missing something.  I’m still sticking to keeping the hearing open.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so I know how to vote.  We’re not going to, given what you’ve said, pursue any kind of study?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my feeling is we should just close the hearing and bring it back under ‘old business’ and discuss.

Mr. Steve Rutolo stated I fundamentally disagree that this is the only course of action and that’s what we’re trying to bring up to you.  There are alternatives to this and I don’t think it’s been studied enough for actually for you to make a decision on this basis.  You seem to be resigned to strictly going with the sewage treatment plant which is going to dump directly into our neighborhood.  What I’m saying is there are alternatives and we are researching them as well and we haven’t had enough time pushing this thing through the summer with our resources cut down in order to effectively bring forth additional information for you to review.  This doesn’t have to be a sewage treatment plant.  Like I said before, there are different ways you could discharge in different locations.  You could rebuild the septic fields as they are.  There are other options here.  You have to bring a ton of soil from wherever you have to bring it from to rebuild those fields it can be done.  Don’t tell me it can’t be done because that’s nonsense.  We all know there are alternatives here.  This may be the most viable for them but it is absolutely disastrous for us.  We cannot just rush this through or close this out under this criteria at this time.  It’s simply not acceptable.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated closing the public hearing does not mean that we have made a decision for or against.  We have now at the point where we have collected all of our data.  We have collected comments from the public and now is our time to evaluate all that information and reach a decision on the questions that are in front of us.   Don’t assume that we’re closing that it’s a done deal.  It’s not true.

Mr. John Bernard stated what you’re suggesting that an option might be mounded septic system which most places in the Country are disallowed because they function only for a short period of time, the number of years and then they don’t function.  They’re a very poor substitute for any good septic system and to think that you can bring in hundreds of cubic yards of soil and build a mounded system and that will cure the problem, when it’s all ready they’re already in the wetland now.  That’s not the cure.

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded the situation is maybe they can’t go to 300.  This is the point I’m trying to make.  

Mr. John Bernard stated you’re talking about a separate issue from what we’re discussing tonight.
Mr. Steve Rutolo responded it’s not a separate issue part and parcel of the same issue.  It’s part and parcel of the same issue.  Maybe they can’t go to 300, they can only go to 250 maybe it’s 275.  I don’t know what that number is but there are alternatives to this that we still need to investigate and that’s the point I’m trying to make.  I’m an engineer, I understand these things.  There are alternatives to this and this is not the only solution.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m not so sure we’ve collected all the data.  We’ve collected their data which I’m not saying is wrong and what I’ve said going back to the original question now 15 minutes ago, I would really like to have some of the data evaluated more independently.

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded thank you, I appreciate it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we close the public hearing put it back under old business and/or consider a separate meeting to discuss at length the data and information we have in front of us prior to reaching a decision, seconded. 
Mr. Ivan Kline stated we need to identify when it’s coming back.  In the first instance it should come back under ‘old business’ at the next meeting.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated prior to that if we need to have an interim meeting to discuss at length the information. 

Mr. John Klarl stated because the implying information and the number of people involved.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the question the word “if” do we need, in other words I’m going to vote based on I want to have another meeting, so “if” doesn’t do it for me.  Can we have another meeting?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked another public hearing?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded another meeting to discuss this with some information other than what we have.  Something more independent.  Something like I said before.  We need to have just to make sure that everybody is reasonably satisfied that we’ve taken as much time as possible to react or to respond to specific areas of concern that maybe we need to have some input as Bob is saying.  We need to do something new.  If we’re just going to sit here and talk about things that we’ve already we all know at this point.  We’re all very clear on what those concerns in the community are, what is the point?  Let’s have some different or new input that will help to shape this in some way to focus us all in terms of what the applicant has presented and what the concerns of the community are.  I agree with you that you may not have really finished that point yet.

Mr. Robert Foley asked if the hearing is closed, my question is would, which I still don’t agree with, you’ve been here much longer than I have, I’ve been here 12 years, and I hate to see that the public is then not included so I’m sure that the Chair would welcome or entertain any valid points of information, does that mean than if the concerned residents end up with an attorney and/or a viable consultant in reference to some of the “data” that we have at hand that may dispute that?  Is that entertained by the Board then?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it’s not part of the public record?  There is a written comment period that we can extend after the close of the public hearing we can set whatever comment period we want?

Mr. John Klarl responded typically we’ve done 10, 15, 20 days.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but that may not be enough.  Can’t we make it longer and would the applicant be willing to go there to make it further.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s our decision to make it longer.  We can make a longer written comment period if people have information to submit.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated 30 days.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you want to do it?  You want to do it up until the next meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it would be the impetus.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I’d rather have it so that we have it in our packet so that we can read it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in other words the impetus is on the community to get the information, get it to us in time for us to make a decision.

Mr. John Klarl stated the next meeting is October 6th.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so make it until September 30th, the end of the month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you could do it the 25th, that’s the deadline for the next meeting, September 25th.  We get all the stuff in, your packets would go out to you Tuesday or Wednesday of that week so you can make it the same deadline as the application deadline.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s when the applicant’s deadline is and I appreciate Mr. Kehoe saying that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because that guarantees you’re going to get it into your packets mailed to you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the 25th?  Okay.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated the resolution is to close the public hearing, bring this back under ‘old business’ at the next meeting in October and to extend the written comment period to September 25th.

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s a three-fold motion. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what?

Mr. John Klarl responded he said his motion is to close the public hearing, bring it back under ‘old business’ and extend the written comment to September 25th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think that’s enough time, but anyway.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can I have a second on that new motion?  Seconded with all in favor saying “aye,” opposed “no.”  Mr. Kehoe you want to poll the Board?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Bernard; aye, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Chairman Kessler; aye, Ms. Taylor; reluctantly aye, Mr. Foley; no.  Five to one.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you can continue to submit written comments to this Board up until September 25th.  We’re going to have this on the agenda under ‘old business’ as Mr. Foley noted we will entertain at the next meeting some points of information but it’s not a public hearing.  Short points of information that you think is important to this Board to know as it deliberates.  We hope to see you again at the next meeting and we thank you for coming out tonight.


*



*



*


OLD BUSINESS
PB 3-09      a.
Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Special Land Use Permit for Pondview Commons on the Boulevard” prepared by Cronin Engineering dated October 13, 2008 (see prior PB 26-96).


Mr. Steven Kessler stated we did discuss this at the work session.  Staff has prepared a three-page limited scope of studies that we’d like to see as part of this application.  There were a couple of additions that we mentioned.  I believe you were at the work session.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded I was and Mr. Chairman you know at the work session, as you put it, I was itching to put in my two cents on one issue that you were all discussing.  I’ll be very brief on it.  As you know in this application we spent a fair amount of time with the Town Board prior to getting released under the RRUSP district to present before your Board.  One of the issues that we discussed with the Town Board was is there a better way to permit ingress and egress to this particular site which is developed, occupied by 56 families, possibly more and promote a better intersection at Route 6.  The Town Board indicated a desire to see a signalized intersection across from Baker Street.  What I was chomping at the bit to make sure and I think Mr. Vergano ultimately ended up saying it, the last thing I heard was the Town was doing an appraisal of the beverage distributorship.  My client can’t convince that individual, property owner, to sell his property.  My client has indicated to the Town Board, and I think we mentioned it to you all, that we are willing to set aside a section on our site where ultimately that facility could be relocated permitting a better ingress/egress point that would tie in to Baker Street.  The only way that all that happens is if the Town decides it wants to rectify a situation.  Not really just for the 56 families that currently reside on my client’s property but I think it’s in excess of 150 families in the Baker Street neighborhood that would benefit.  That’s a comprehensive redevelopment of the Cortlandt Town Center, the Baker Street neighborhood and ultimately tying my property and the beer distributorship in.  We’re in, we’re ready to cooperate, we’re ready to assist but if that’s your desire, if that’s a global desire of the Board you guys have to report back to the Town Board that the Town Board has to decide to pursue that.  We don’t have eminent domain power.  You all or the Town Board does.  That having been said, we reviewed your list of issues.  I’ve received this from Chris and Ed quite some time ago Cronin’s office and our office have reviewed it.  I am somewhat concerned about being asked to conceptually design a four-way signalized intersection at the Cortlandt Town Center.  We can probably give you, with all due respect, we can give you something but I don’t think it’s fair and appropriate to turn to my client and tell my client to do a full comprehensive traffic redesign of that intersection until the Town steps up and says “we want you to do that because we’re going to take the property of the beer distributorship and make this possible,” otherwise you’re asking my client and our team to do a study that we all know is completely irrelevant because we have no control over it.  I want to make sure you’re all clear.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t see this study here.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it says “conceptually design a four-way signalized intersection,” I’m on C4.  I’m saying in order to design it correctly we would have to spend a fair amount of engineering resources, a study, a report, an analysis.  What I’m suggesting Mr. Chairman is we’ll do a conceptual design and I want to make sure we’re all clear it’s going to be a rough conceptual design from Cronin’s office.  We have a pretty good idea of what it’s going to look like but a full build-out analysis would really require the Town to step up first and tell us that this is viable.  As far as the issue of the left turns that you were discussing at your work session, remember someone was saying it and maybe it was Mr. Foley, there are 56 families more or less in there right now that are currently constrained by the “no left turn” signs that are out on Route 6.  We’re not changing anything we’re just rebuilding and eliminating a blighted area that the Town has adopted this district specifically to deal with and rebuilding it with 56 new units.  We may be stuck with the same traffic condition that already exists.  We don’t think we’re going to add vehicles.  In fact, my client’s estimate is that there’s a possibility that we actually reduce the number of vehicles because many of the occupants have numerous vehicles associated with the units.  Nonetheless, you should be aware you’ve already retained John Canning and Adler Associates to do a traffic analysis of this area on Route 6.  That has been funded by my client.  It has been paid for by Ryan Main and being done by the Town.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Steinmetz I just want to emphasize the conceptual design of a four-way intersection may I ask where the alternatives in this and that is the alternative really.  I understand you can’t do the complete design on this but enough information to provide what it would look like, what the benefits are and what the opposite is and a traffic impact to some degree even a comment from Mr. Canning on that intersection and what we need.  That’s what I’m looking for because that to me is an alternative to the present situation.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded in the submission materials that Cronin’s office has generated you already have the entrance to that point we’ll just look at the intersection.  No problem.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’d like to just bring up this question that I raised at the work session about the possibility that the distributor could accept that you would let him move first.  You’d give him some space wherever you’d plotted it and if he agreed you can actually build out his store first. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you did mention that.  There’s no impediment that I’m aware of on our side if we set aside the area my client would create the area and the beer distributor, should he decide to take the money that the Town was using to condemn his property and rebuild himself there, he could do that before he actually vacated the premises and moved in.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know that that had been brought up.  I don’t know that this had been discussed in the past and I’m bringing it up as a question.  Can somebody discuss this with him and then see if this could work?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Loretta, my recollection, Ed correct me if I’m wrong, at the Town Board level I believe the Town Board had asked Mr. Wood and the Supervisor were going to reach out once again because our efforts to contact have basically fallen on deaf ears.  I don’t know whatever happened with that.  If I recall that correctly.
Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s correct.  As you mentioned earlier, the Town did ask for an appraisal of the property.  I don’t believe an appraisal has been completed.  If I can go out on a limb here, I don’t believe the Planning Board is saying that your approval, if your approval it does happen is contingent on this intersection happening.  We just want to take a look at the intersection and its impacts and maybe tie this into the other developments that are currently in the area.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I appreciate you saying that and what Mr. Vergano made clear to us when we were doing our initial designs is even if we ultimately build the site without changing the egress/ingress points that we were to leave the area suitable so that ultimately it could be tied in should the Town in the future do that, that would be very easy.  Mr. Cronin’s office has already designed that tie in.  Our development could be taken off of the Route 6 “no left turn” points and tied right into that intersection even if it’s five years, three years, seven years down the road. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I move that we adopt the Department of Technical Services list of individual reports for this application and that the applicant use this to get back to staff with information, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question at the work session I thought we discussed some possible additions or word language additions in this draft.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we discussed including the pond as part of the first section.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that you could do at the second bullet under a) where it talks about “provide a complete report of the computations and peek flows and existing conditions before or after development” you could reference in there any impacts on the pond.  You could add the pond language to that section.  I think that covers it.  Then, Mr. Foley brought up reviewing of the sustainable developments study under geographic study section we’ll put some language in there regarding that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and notably an inter-proposal by the sustainable development study to actually construct a right-hand turn lane on Barrymore Hill going onto Lexington and the impact that it would have on the project.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also I believe Lakeland Schools impact was also brought up at the work session.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll add language about that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m not sure if you gave us a breakdown of the demographics of the current site with the number of students.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that would be the comparing contrast that Mr. Foley’s looking for.  I understood that.  I just want to state for my client’s benefit just so that it doesn’t go unsaid.  We’ve talked about it at the last time, it is my understanding that we’re doing this table of contents and therefore these studies with an eye toward a potential condition negative declaration because this is an unlisted action because this already a developed site and that was something that had been discussed at the Town Board level.  I know you haven’t voted on it.  I know you haven’t decided it but I just want everybody to know that my client and our team are embarking on this hoping that we’re moving in the line of Merson V. McNally which talks about an open and deliberative process in this situation like this to do a CND.
Mr. John Klarl stated condition neg. dec. 

Mr. John Bernard stated put it on the table.

With all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 14-06    b.
Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3  page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph  G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I recuse myself and ask that I be called in.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the sole purpose here is to discuss the preliminary draft of the conditions and modifications of which there are 12 and David I’m sure you have comments on some of them.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as I indicated during the work session we know you don’t have a complete Board this evening.  We are certainly by no means asking for the Board to vote.  We appreciate the fact that staff generated the conditions and my clients have asked me to focus, in particular, on two of the conditions: 7 and 8.  The concern about 7 was that it was our understanding that the limit of disturbance line that Mr. Mastromonaco’s office had generated on the plan was a construction disturbance line and that to the extend that there was some kind of declaration there would be no construction by the sub-divider beyond the limit of disturbance.  We were not offering or recommending that a home owner be precluded from doing anything different from anyone else meaning if they want to do something and they need a grading permit, they’ve got to get a grading permit.  If they want to cut trees and they need a tree permit, they need to get a tree permit.  If they need a slopes permit, they would have to come back and ask for a steep slopes permit.  Grading, slopes, tree removal I don’t believe there are any wetlands in the backyard of either of these lots.  What I’m suggesting is the condition is drafted appeared to be broader than we had originally discussed because it’s looking for a declaration that there shall be no disturbance beyond the proposed limits of disturbance, that would arguably mean that a family couldn’t even put a storage of firewood between two trees in their backyard because they’d be disturbing the ground between the two trees.  That was never the contemplated concept.  We wanted to just raise that.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any comments?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe it was staff contemplated idea that there would be no disturbance beyond those lines even on subsequent home owners.  That would be for the Board to decide.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I agree with Mr. Kehoe, it would be for the Board to decide meaning if somebody wanted to do something beyond those lines and there was a regulation that required the Board to decide that, a tree permit, a slopes permit or a grading permit than we would either go to DOTS, go to the Department of Technical Services if it was an administrative permit or we would come back to the Planning Board.  I don’t think we have an objection in coming back to the Planning Board but the limited disturbance was to promote the safe construction of those houses.  Build them, build the driveways, the houses and adequately protect the environment with regard to the construction of those homes.  If somebody wants to do something beyond that, that’s up to that home owner and whatever local laws would apply at that point in time.  I just don’t want to tie somebody in their – literally this says you can’t do anything.  I can’t possibly put a birdfeeder up in a tree.  I can’t put my dog on a leash in the back.  The word ‘disturbance’ means disturbance.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I would like to know why staff felt it was necessary to propose specific limits of disturbance?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded there was a lot of discussion between either a single-lot concept or a two-lot concept and to keep the impacts from a two-lot concept fairly equal to or close to the impacts from a single-lot concept we felt that imposing a limit of disturbance boundary would do that. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how much backyard or how much does that extend from the home that proposed limit of disturbance?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded not much.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we could modify the line just a little bit, bring it back another 10 feet or so.  Make the backyard a little bit more usable.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked David what’s the next one?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded before we move on.  If we’re starting to look at the use of the rear yard that’s a different story and that’s the concept to allow somebody to make some reasonable use beyond the home construction.  The second point is number 8.  We’re very well aware that the Board has been open about the fact that they wanted an agreement about monitoring and maintenance.  We’ve discussed this a little bit with Mr. Klarl, Mr. Kehoe and Mr. Vergano.  It was my understanding that this would be a durational monitoring a certain number of years and I think that staff was willing to agree to some limitation.  This is not going to be monitored in perpetuity.  Certainly if there should be some violation of some local Code it’s always subject to enforcement but to the extent that we were memorializing a monitoring program even on massive subdivisions that I’ve done of 50, 60 lots in this Town I’ve never had an on-going maintenance and monitoring program that was in perpetuity.  I didn’t know if that was inadvertently dropped out.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked on condition 8?
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked does yours say five years?

Mr. Steven Kessler reiterated five years.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated on the last sentence.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it says five years because Brad penned in five years on ours.  We don’t have another version.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we apologize.  It’s been around for awhile.  So it says five years now.

Mr. John Klarl confirmed and continuing for the next five years it says.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the first one you guys will take another look at it and we’ll refer this back.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I have one more minor on 8 and I don’t know if this is in yours also.  It says “time of final approval” we wanted to deposit this amount at the time of building permit.  This is not something that my client should be obligated to deposit at approval.  It should be when they’re going to actually be doing the stuff.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded work it out with the staff before the next meeting because we’re not voting on it tonight.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we hope you’ll have a full Board and we hope you will entertain…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we bring this back under ‘old business’ and prepare a resolution for consideration in October, seconded.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated on the question I just wanted to note so that the silence isn’t misconstrued I don’t expect to be supporting the resolution so I’m not really commenting on the conditions and I’ll express my views when we do vote.

All in favor saying “aye.”

PB 1-07       c.
Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary, Plat, Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates,” and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan,” latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I think the sentiment of the Board at the work session was that we could use another site inspection on this to go back over the site in view of the comments that have been the information we’ve received.  I would move that we set this for site inspection on September 27 and then I guess bring it back as ‘old business’ in October.
Mr. John Klarl stated for the note that Mr. Bernard is recused and I’m recused.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so noted.  

Seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Coleman’s report.  You said you hadn’t received Mr. Coleman’s report.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes I hadn’t received Mr. Coleman’s report.  I’d like to get that.  What’s the date of that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded Steve’s here.  I don’t know if you did two.  The one I have here says you’re submitting your preliminary comments on your initial review of July 14th, 2008.  There isn’t one later than that?  That would be the one you need and that’s the one that the development team has gone point by point.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked 2008?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes 2008.

Mr. Robert Foley asked wasn’t there going to be an update of one?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s one of the reasons Steve is here.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Chairman I know you don’t want to hear a presentation.  My perception is your Board doesn’t want to hear an in-depth presentation.  We’ve never presented on this application.  It was filed two years ago.  My client has spent the last two years doing a host of environmental studies working with the Town, the Town staff, LBG doing a hydro geologic analysis working with Mr. Coleman.  I know that if Tim Miller and I do what we were planning on doing you’ll probably push us out the door.  But, maybe since Mr. Coleman took the time he’s your consultant, not ours, and he’s here maybe you could let him at least tell you the studies he’s done, the conclusions he’s reached and the mitigation that he’s had us incorporate.  My client chose to do this application differently than many others.  He spent the last two years spending time, money, and effort dealing with the site, mitigating, redesigning and working with staff.  It’s really ready to come back before your Board.  Tim and I are ready to present but we really only have four members of the Board that are even able to vote on this.  It’s up to you.  I feel badly that Steve’s here at the Town’s request to talk to you about his analysis.  He’s done two reports.  He’s conducted probably four meetings with your staff that I’m aware of and spent a lot of time at my client’s expense working for the Town.  He’s a good guy.  I feel badly he’s here and we send him home.  It’s just my opinion. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated alright Steve go ahead.

Mr. Steve stated I did receive comments in terms of chronology the last written comments that I’ve prepared was from July 2008 and since that time, as Dave mentioned, we have met several times to review the application and to address the comments that were made back in July of ’08.  I think the applicant has been very responsive in addressing a lot of those issues and have done additional studies.  Part of the report recommended that they retain a hydro geologist to do an analysis of the potential impacts to the off-site arboreta and that’s in the Village of Croton.  That study was done by LBG Engineering which is another consultant for the Town.  They’ve made several recommendations within that study as well.  I’ll also address comments that I made in 2008.  I did receive their comments so Tim and Dave put together point by point that you have in your packet.  I just got back this morning from vacation so I don’t have a written report for you.  I can go through some of those items if it would help and follow that up with a written comment to that.  For the most part the site plan and the proposed layout is really come together to minimize the amount of impacts that will occur at the site.  They’ve got it down to approximately six acres of the roughly the 24 acre site. 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated 6.4 acres disturbed, 17 acres [inaudible].
Mr. Steve stated one of the key things we did early on was I requested that they remove impacts within the regulated wetland and 100-foot setback and they were able to do that at the storm water base and the road was shifted so that there’s no impact occurring within the regulated wetland area.  In addition, one of the key recommendations was to have a conservation easement placed on the eastern corridor of that property so they would have approximately four acres now that are set aside as a conservation easement which will include the regulated buffer area and additional property and that piece that adjoins the Con Ed piece is part of the recommendation to maintain an intact corridor through that area.  In addition to that they’re also proposing – we requested that they do a buffer along the which would be the southern end of the western property lines and they’ve proposed a 30-foot buffer adjacent to the Con Ed piece and then another 50-foot buffer on the western side so it also helps maintain a natural corridor which was part of the recommendation in the bio-diversity study.  They’ve also addressed the tree preservation.  They’ve done a pretty decent job of identifying the key species of trees and specimen quality trees that are present on this site and they retained an arborist or arborscape and then also Tim Miller’s office has also reviewed the tree preservation plan and they’ve modified their layout for individual lots to preserve more of the specimen quality or larger trees on the lot.  The other key thing that I recommended was to look at how they could do low impact development measures on this site and I think the revised plans does reflect efforts in that direction.  They’re using more infiltration on each individual lot to help with putting things in the ground instead of a point discharge and they also have considerations for other methods that they’re proposing to leave it up to the potential new home owners to consider other alternatives on the individual lots such as rain gardens and other methods that are used to minimize or capture some of the roof runoff on the individual lot.  That’s something that I’m not sure that’s really a Planning Board decision on whether you feel that should be left up to the future home owner or if that should be part of the site plan approval process. One of the key things that was on the hydrological potential hydrological impacts to the off-site arboretum property that’s in the Village of Croton and there’s been correspondence back-and-forth by the arboretum which I’m sure you’ve seen.  It’s pretty detailed and I think LBG who is the Town’s hydro geologist did a very thorough job of reviewing the on-site hydrology and potential impacts.  I would concur with their recommendations that I think it’s a very minimal impact from the site.  The watershed that feeds the arboretum property is approximately, I think the engineer calculated about 183, 185 acre area that feeds the arboretum.  The uplands site only 10 acres of the development is within that watershed area.  When you factor that in it’s about 5% of the watershed.  When you take that further there’s only two houses that are going to be within that 10 acre area based on the layout plus some road construction.  It really reduces the amount of disturbance that’s going to occur within the watershed that does drain into the arboretum property.  The primary concern was with ground water impacts in terms of replenishing water that’s used from wells that goes back through the septic system.  The end result is a very minor impact.  It’s very difficult to measure and quantify how much disturbance would occur within 5% of that watershed and how significant that is in terms of maintaining base hydrology supported for the wetland.  The difficulty is the type of studies that would be required to determine what that impact would be.  I think is way beyond the scope of this type of application.  To give you an example that you could do a lot of different studies but it gives you just a point in time.  With wetlands and hydrology you need years and decades to really get a good model for determining what the impact is and what the seasonal fluctuations and yearly and cyclical type changes that occur in a watershed area.  There are so many inputs that occur within a watershed that to pinpoint just 5% of the watershed without studying the entire 183 acres makes it really problematic to demand that an applicant really quantify what that impact would be.  That’s in a nutshell the key things because there’s been so much time that’s transpired since your last site visit that I think with the revised plan it’ll give you a better feel for the measures that they’ve done in the field to reduce the amount of environmental impacts that will occur.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Chairman on the issue of the site visit I did confirm what you asked during the work session Mr. Giordano and Mr. Mastromonaco’s office will be able to suitably stake out everything before the 27th so that when we do that site walk you really will be able to see.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated center of the road, the houses, the corners of the houses.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked do you need Mr. Coleman present on that site walk?  Would that be useful so that he can point out what he analyzed and where and why he recommended the conservation easements in certain places?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked we have the conservation easement delineated as well?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked could we?  We certainly could stake out some points around it so that we’d see it.  It’s in the one area on lot 6 in the basin area.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s marked on our current site plan?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, the new one.  Do we want Steve there?  Save your money.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when will we have the written report?
Mr. Steve Coleman responded I’ll have it by the end of next week.  I’ll be traveling next week but I should have it within 10 days.  I’ll make sure you have it before your site visit.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move to have a site inspection on September 27, bring this back under ‘old business’ in October, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley asked on the question Steve you mentioned the type of studies on geology wetlands that you feel they would go way beyond the scope of this project, is that what you were saying?  In other words you feel it’s not necessary?

Mr. Coleman responded what I looked at in terms of LBG hydrological reports in their follow up response to the latest submission by the arboretum provided a good synopsis of why the impact is very minimal to do that type of study.
Mr. Robert Foley asked you wholeheartedly agree with LBG?
Mr. Coleman responded I concur with their recommendations and I’ve had discussions with Bill Beckman since and I would concur that it’s beyond the scope of what is normally required.  I would feel more strongly that type of study would be required if that upland site was immediately adjacent to the wetland and more of the watershed was draining directly into the arboretum.

All in favor saying “aye.”

PB 10-06    d.
Application of Sammy Musa Eljamal of Best Rent Properties for Amended Site Development Plan Approval and a Wetland Permit for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 1,728 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plans, Proposed Site Modifications” prepared by Bohler Engineering, P.C. dated August 24, 2009.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we understand you’ve reduced the size of the store.  You’ve made the traffic flow a little bit better.  I think we’re going to set a public hearing on this for the next meeting.  I think we’re all very interested to see how this thing works.  Not necessarily tonight but certainly at the public hearing.
Mr. Jim Gillespie presented himself from the Board and stated from Bohler Engineering.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anything you want to say?

Mr. Jim Gillespie responded we look forward to the public hearing.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m going to send you some site plan with some turning radii when using some templates.  Highlight some of the concerns that I shared with the Planning Board during our work session that will have to be addressed during the public hearing. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we set the public hearing for October 6th and bring it back under ‘old business,’ seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 6-09      e.
Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for site improvements including a gravel driveway and parking and additional landscaping for an existing industrial building on a 3.2 acre parcel of property located on the Sixth Street and Madalyn Avenue as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Plan” prepared by Gemmola & Associates, LLC latest revision dated July 23, 2009 (see prior PB 26-04.)
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Ed we’re going to set a public hearing for the next meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Chairman I move that we set a public hearing for October 6th, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just for the record do they know about the arborists report?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded Pat Bell is the engineer with Ed and you’re aware of Rich’s comments.

Mr. Bell,  I was copied on it.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that he was okay with the removal of the trees.

PB 8-09      f.
Referral from the Town Board transmitting the proposed draft zoning amendment regarding the PODS Ordinance for a recommendation from the Planning Board.

Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Chairman I move that we schedule this for a public hearing on October 6th, seconded.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question there’s still some language changes that need to take place and you’ll work with Ivan to get those in.

All in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*




CORRESPONDENCE

PB 8-97     a.
Letter dated August 3, 2009 from Lawrence Kalkstein requesting Planning Board approval for a 6-foot fence to be located along the parking lot at 2144 Albany Post Road.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we approve this request for fencing by motion, seconded.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question staff indicated that this is on his property line.  This is on his property this fence?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s noted but the approval should be subject to Ed and the Department of technical Services working with Mr. Kalkstein.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so noted in the motion.

All in favor saying “aye.”

PB 19-96   b.
Letter dated August 10, 2009 from Michele McGovern requesting a proposed alteration to the entryway and signage for the Cortlandt Ridge Subdivision located on Croton Avenue.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I think in view of the number of other approvals this needs and some of the issues that were raised at the work session I believe that we should defer consideration of this until the applicant has demonstrated that it can obtain the other approvals that would be necessary to make it appropriate for us to review.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked those other agencies are?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded most notably the Town Board since this facility would be on Town property.

Seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 22-98    c.
Letter dated August 12, 2009 from Sonia Ferra & Angelo Fidelio requesting the 11th 90-day re-approval of the Final Plat for the Apian Way Estates Subdivision located on Fawn Ridge Court.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is the applicant here?  What’s the problem?  I know you wrote us a letter.

Ms. Sonia Ferra stated unfortunately it’s the same situation from the start.  We just don’t have the means to meet your resolution unless we sell the property.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you actively trying to sell it?

Ms. Sonia Ferra responded we are actively trying to sell it.  We lowered it considerably and we’re not even looking to make a profit, we’re just looking to break even and get it off our hands.

Mr. John Klarl asked you’re Sonia Ferra?

Ms. Sonia Ferra responded yes I am. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve resolution 34-09 and with that hoping, at least in my opinion, that this is the last – I understand all the extenuating circumstances and apparently there was a baby.  

Ms. Sonia Ferra responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make the motion, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 13-05    d.
Letter dated August 13, 2009 from Frederick Wells submitting the revised FEIS for the Residences at Mill Court Crossing Subdivision located at the end of Mill Court and on Lexington Avenue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Chairman I move that we receive and file this application, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 25-05    e.
Letter dated August 19, 2009 from Dominick Santucci requesting the 4th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Radzivila Subdivision located at the end of Radzivila Road off of Dutch Street.

Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adopt resolution 35-09, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 15-06    f.
Letter dated August 18, 2009 from Patrick Bell requesting the 2nd one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for a commercial building located at70 Roa Hook Road.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adopt the resolution number 36-09, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 14-98    g.
Letter dated August 17, 2009 from Patrick Bell requesting the 11th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Washington trails subdivision located on Washington Street.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move for the adoption of resolution 37-09 granting the request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 20-06    h. 
Letter dated August 17, 2009 from Patrick Bell requesting the 1st six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Picciano Subdivision located on Maple Avenue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we approve resolution 38-09, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 2-05       i.
Letter dated August 17, 2009 from Patrick Bell requesting the 1st one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for the Louis Rinaldi building located on Route 129.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adopt resolution 39-09 approving the request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 21-05     j.
Letter dated August 18, 2009 from Jesse Stackhouse & John DeIulio  requesting the 1st 90-day time extension of Final Plat Approval for the Hillside Estates Subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Chairman I move that we approve resolution 40-09, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 33-06    k.
Letter dated August 19, 2009 from Robert Peake, AICP transmitting the draft DEIS for the Cortlandt Crossing Project located at 3144 East Main Street, Route 6.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we receive and file the draft DEIS, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
Mr. David Steinmetz asked you know who you’re going to send that out to review the DEIS, have you made a decision on that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded there’ll be an AKRF and Edwards and Kelsey specifically for the trafficking study.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you need additional copies or anything Ed you can let Bob is here as well.  
PB 9-06      l.
Letter dated August 21, 2009 from John C. Sullivan requesting the 3rd six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Lance Wickel Subdivision located on Lafayette Avenue.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adopt resolution 41-09 granting this request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 13-07   m.
Letter dated August 25, 2009 from Brian Panessa requesting the reconsideration of condition #22 from Planning Board Resolution 30-08 limiting advertising of food services at the Hilltop Nursery located at 2028 Albany Post Road.

Mr. Brian Panessa stated as you stated I’m asking that the Planning Board reconsider condition number 22 of the approving resolution to Hilltop Nurseries for limiting advertising of food services.  If we go back a year ago, whatever it was, obviously there were some issues that the Planning Board had regarding traffic and my consultant as well as your consultant and New York State Department of Transportation came to the conclusion that there is not a traffic issue at this location.  Over the last 60 to 90 days it appears that there is most definitely is not a traffic issue and it is my understanding based on the meetings that we had leading up to the approving resolution that the main reason for the requirement or the limitation of advertising of the food services was primarily due to the traffic issues there and that if in fact there was food service advertisement the traffic issues would be such that may cause a problem.  As we all know here the hours of operation of this business are from 9:00 am to 6:00 pm, so therefore the morning traffic, the commuter traffic is not an issue relative to food services.  Another issue that I have is from a marketing perspective.  I have a website there will be much advertising for this business.  It is quite cumbersome to be able to advertise to the depth and the breadth of this business if in fact I cannot discuss the ancillary activities and services that this business offers.  I am requesting that the Planning Board reconsider condition number 22 relative to the limitation of advertising of food services.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked comments?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded there were specific references that we seem to recall that you indicated that coffee service and it wasn’t even mentioned I don’t think food service was even mentioned at that time that you were not interested in making this a coffee shop of any type and that you were not offering to sell food.  Now what you’re asking for appears to me is that you’re asking for a restaurant and it no longer falls into – I think if we had known that we would have looked at this application differently.  We may have changed the traffic requirements and maybe even affected our decision.  I think what you’ve done here is change the application drastically from what was originally intended. 

Mr. Brian Panessa responded I am not asking for this to be considered a restaurant.  I am asking that from day one it be considered a café of which a café offers coffee and Danish and that’s exactly…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but that’s not what you were asking for originally.  You were even conceding alright just an occasional cup of coffee with a coffee machine or something.  Now it’s coffee shop, café whatever you want to call it that’s still the same thing to me.  You’re selling food and coffee now which is a different use than what was approved.

Mr. Brian Panessa responded Mr. Bianchi it was always that use.  It was a café.  A café does not just offer coffee it does offer Danish, doughnuts or what have you.  Again, it’s an ancillary component of the business.  A very small ancillary component of the business.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated let me quote you from the minutes of that meeting.  I’m not sure when these minutes were updated May 5th, 2008 “you can get a cup of coffee but it’s not a coffee shop.”  And, later on Chairman Kessler said “we don’t want you to offer 15 kinds of coffee,” and you said “I don’t want them there anyway.  I don’t want them in there to buy coffee.”

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you also said “there is one use for the property I assume that means this property.  It’s a nursery garden center.  There are some ancillary services, products that we’ll offer but there’s one use for this property, a nursery/garden center.”  We specifically discussed that we were concerned that if there were food use that would be independently attracting people that will throw off the parking and the traffic counts that we’ve relied on and you assured us that it was not your intention to attract people who would come there independent of the nursery/garden center in order to take advantage of food service, but that seems to be now exactly what you want to do.  I was in there on Saturday and you can get a lobster roll and quiches and crab salad maybe.  You could have lunch there which there wasn’t a big crowd having lunch because you’re not advertising for it but if you can then advertise it you can have this lunch there.  Now you have a separate business there. 

Mr. Brian Panessa responded first of all the Board of Health does restrict my use of the capacity in which I can use that property for food services.  Obviously, I have a food service permit from the Board of Health that limits me to 10 seats for that particular café.  Let me just touch on, again, from day one we’re going back some time now, the business model here.  The business model is such that it is a destination.  It’s an experience and it’s for families.  And, if in fact you were to comment to Hilltop Farms you will notice that families do come into this location and the reason why families do come into this location is because a mother, a father and children can experience a very positive way of life by frequenting Hilltop Farms.  A father and son can walk the property.  The mother and daughter can sit and have a cup of coffee.  They can shop.  What I’m really asking from you here is to allow me to advertise, again, the full depth and breadth of what I have created here.  I’m not looking to create a restaurant here.  I can’t.  I’m restricted by the Board of Health.  All I’m asking for is when I create a website, or I advertise in the Yellow Pages, or I advertise in the Journal News, or there’s an editorial about my business that why is it that it can’t be discussed that there is a café that can seat 10 individuals?  We’re not talking about a Starbucks as I think somebody had mentioned some time ago.  Clearly, the traffic professionals would look at a Starbucks much differently than they would a garden center.  In addition to that I think the most important thing that we’re maybe missing here, maybe not, is the fact that my business hours are not during the rush hour and 80% of the business is done on the weekend.  Therefore, what harm would it be if in fact I was to advertise “café food services,” how ever you want to define it?  Clearly, if in fact there is an issue with traffic that is something totally separate of food services and café. T hat’s something that I would have to deal with down the road or the New York State Department of Transportation or the Town of Cortlandt would have to deal with down the road.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated Brian I’m sorry to do this before the meeting but the café area that you currently have is that what was shown on the original plan that was submitted?

Mr. Brian Panessa responded I’m sorry Ed I didn’t understand.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked the café area that you have right now, the number of seats that you have, was that shown on the original plan?

Mr. Brian Panessa responded absolutely.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked exactly the way it is?

Mr. Brian Panessa responded correct.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if that’s what’s shown on the plan and if that was approved as part of the plan and if our traffic consultant agrees that – because I believe he maxed out the traffic potential of that café, I mentioned that at the work session I can corroborate that with the traffic consultant that may influence the Board.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think that’s the point I was going to make.  I’d like for the staff to check to see if it’s on the drawing.  I hear what’s being said but I’d like somebody to check it and number two who did the traffic study? Canning?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, John Canning.  I’ll get his feedback.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated to get some input from him as to whether or not this use now changes anything.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if my memory serves me correctly that he did max out that use.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I could be wrong, but my recollection was it essentially didn’t count as additional traffic or parking because it was viewed only as people who would otherwise be there for the nursery/garden center in the same way as I said at the work session and if you look at a golf driving range that also has a small snack area and were counting how many parking spaces do you need, you would look at how many golf driving stalls you have not that there might also be 10 people who would separately come there to eat because nobody would go to a golf driving range to go to the snack bar.  If you now advertise to the people who would go here independent of the nursery/garden center I don’t believe we accounted for that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I can check with Canning on that.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we would need to have the materials put back in front of us so we could figure out what we did look at.  I understand it was shown on the plan.  That was the whole point of the discussion we had when we gave the approval.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’ll also check the traffic report and check with the consultant. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated on the question I think in addition to the traffic we should review whether the parking was calculated with this as a separate use so that it will be added on top of the nursery/garden center.

Mr. Brian Panessa asked Mr. Kline why are you suggesting that it’s a separate use?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded because if I had a business and I had a café where I advertise people to have lunch next door to a nursery and garden center I would consider that two separate uses that can independently attract people.  Same way if we have a small shopping center like the one that’s diagonally across from you The Cortlandt Plaza Center on 9A, they have to add up the separate uses in there and say “okay, there’s the A&S Food Store it’s next to a liquor store, it’s next to a florist, or whatever,” if those attract different people so they’re cumulative.

Mr. Brian Panessa responded I can appreciate that however, it is one entity.  It is one business.  It’s one multi-use business and that’s what it is and I think Ed is correct.  We studied this pretty in-depth.  I think we had multiple consultants study this and come up with the traffic flows that this kind of a business model would generate and clearly it came back that this type of a business and multi-use would not cause a traffic issue and I’m pretty clear that it was the DOT that had the same opinion and AKRF had the same opinion as well as one other consultant.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we’ll see what the record reveals.

All in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*



NEW BUSINESS 
PB 9-09      a.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated August 21, 2009 (see prior PB 35-06)

Mr. John Klarl stated on Heinzer at the work session we discussed extending the time to October.  I don’t think we it on the record at the public hearing. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ll refer this back.  You obviously have a comment to make.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I insisted that my client come because I didn’t think it would ever go this long and I would at least like to introduce Tom Malone who is the president of Brookfield Resource Management.  We have what we think is a terrific application and a great project.  I know you don’t want to hear all about it tonight.  I know you’re referring it to staff.  I know you’re referring it to legal.  This is basically the Kauffman Autoparts facility updated and run well.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked two questions.  1) Does this fall under the Moratorium of the Town?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no it does not based upon a letter that Mr. Wood wrote to me dated April 14th: “Dear Mr. Steinmetz, you recently inquired us as to whether or not the proposed local law number one of 2009 establishing a moratorium on scrap metal processing and other uses would have any impact on your above-referenced client.”  April 14th, 2009 a letter that Tom wrote to me when I was at the Moratorium hearing as I think everybody remembers…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked did we get a copy of that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.  I will make sure you get a copy of this.  Tom wrote a letter specifically saying that the Town’s records show that your client’s property has a valid special permit in effect.  Any uses permitted under this section are not effected by the Moratorium nor would any application pertaining to this site the Zoning or Planning Board be impacted.  This property has had its approvals long before April 1st, 2009 and this special permit is not subject to moratoriums.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked does that include the renewal of the special permit?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded without question.  Anything relative to this site.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m surprised you’re not asking for a renewal.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded because we don’t need one.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it expires in March doesn’t it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it expires sometime next year.  We certainly can make that part of this application.

Mr. John Klarl stated just for the record Mr. Wood wrote the letter.  We’re familiar with the letter but also we’re going to throw this back to legal to look at the entire Moratorium in light of the application as you’ve now applied.  We’ll look at the entire thing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.  I would recommend then that we try to schedule a site inspection at the earliest possible date because what Brookfield is proposing to do is no different from the junkyard operation, junkyard being the defined term under your Code that Kauffman was doing it’s just doing it in a fashion that I’m quite confident you’re all going to find far more commendable in terms of the ability to take all of the metals and the various things that come in in vehicles and recycle them.  Tom and his company are doing a similar operation in Elmsford.  This is their business.  They are extremely well versed in taking things and making sure they get reused.

Mr. John Klarl asked are they still pursuing the operation they had in Buchanan?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I don’t think this has anything to do with this.

Mr. John Klarl asked but you had an operation in Buchanan by the railroad tracks?  Are you still pursuing that operation?

Inaudible.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the recycling also includes more than automobiles which is what Kauffman was limited to.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t think Kauffman was limited to automobiles.  There’s nothing in the resolution that specifically says they were limited to automobiles.  Regardless of that, this is land use and we’re talking about your Code.  The special permit Kauffman got was for junkyard under 307-61.  Just so that everybody’s clear I don’t want to stay longer than you want but I want everybody to go home on this note.  A junkyard under the Cortlandt Code is a “lot, land or structure, or part thereof…”

Mr. Steven Kessler interrupted we’ve got a copy in our files.  We’ve got the language.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s not limited to vehicles.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but if it’s an expanded use from vehicles than it may require a different look at it also.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we can certainly discuss that.  I’m not quite sure from a land use…

Mr. John Bernard stated if you want to get into that David it also says “it’s for the collecting storage or sale of waste paper, rag, scrap metal, or discarded material.”

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.

Mr. John Bernard continued so that “or” in there is very important.  “It’s for the collection, storage or sale of scrap metal, or for the collecting, dismantling, storage, or salvaging of machinery or vehicles not in running condition.”

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s correct.

Mr. John Bernard continued “for the sale of parts thereof.”  There’s going to be some juggling in the dictionary over this.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the important thing John there are a lot of disjunctives in that definition and I would urge you as I did with John and with Ed to come out to the site and come see what’s proposed.

Mr. John Bernard stated that was one thing too in the packet that we got it sounded like some site work has already been accomplished.  How far has that gone?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded there was a certain amount of grading that was done.  We explained to John and to Ed that my client had gone to the Code, to the website.  The website under ‘grading’ indicated that there was – I forget the exact phrase that was posted on the website but I brought it for John and Ed indicating that there was no regulation.  Unfortunately, the website hadn’t been updated to indicate that there is a grading permit required.  As soon as we were alerted the activity ceased.  There’s an area up at the front that was rough graded out without question. 

Mr. John Bernard asked but no other construction’s been done at this point?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no construction has been done.  The facility is operating in a limited capacity right now. There’s a tremendous amount of clean-up that’s been done at the site.  That’s why I’d love for you to come out and see what Tom and Brookfield have done to clean up a condition that was out there.

Mr. Steven Kessler interrupted but I understand more to go.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely if it’s done thoroughly and properly.

Mr. John Klarl asked you’ve had DEC to the site also?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded we invited DEC to the site after conferring with John and Ed and they were out there and DEC is well aware of what’s there and is basically urging him to continue a voluntary clean up of this site.

Mr. Robert Foley asked did you say that Mr. Malone or Brookfield has an operation at the Corporate Headquarters or adjacent to it in Elmsford?  Is that something we could also look at in the future?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m not sure Bob, say that again.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words do you have on-going operation down within Elmsford?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded there’s a couple of things going on in Elmsford, yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked similar to what you’re proposing here?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded you can certainly come down there but maybe the first stop ought to be come to Montrose because as we showed Ed and John when they came out there, there’s already a facility underway with vehicles being properly drained, properly dismantled and every piece of a vehicle that can be put back into the waste treatment recycling being done.  Can we schedule a site walk?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, we’ve got to wait for the review memorandum before we do that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn.
12:17 a.m.
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